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The Hon. J. DOLAN: That is right, but
the Opposition Whip should have taken
the adjournment. I am prepared to be
reasonable at all times. I thought I acted
reasonably when Mr. Willmott asked
for an adjournment of a week following
my second reading speech, and I agreed.
This afternoon I was approached by a
member of the Opposition and asked not
to bring on a Bill because the member
who wished to speak to it was away. I
agreed to that request. That means that
when the Bill is brought on tomorrow
If another member vitally Interested in it
asks me to extend the same privilege to
him I would have to agree.

In this Particular case-the Firearms
Bifi-it appears that three or four speakers
have been waiting for information which
has not been available to all of them. In
those circumstances I felt entitled to make
a protest. If ever I feel that a further ad-
journment of the debate on any Bill Is
unreasonable I will do so again.

The Hon. A. F. Griffith: Before you sit'
down: You realise that nobody on this
side can take the business of the House
out of your hands.

The Hon. J. Dolan: I have already re-
sumed my seat.

Question put and passed.

House adjourned at 7.50 p.m.

KagVtatftut Assnwblg
Wednesday, the 11th April, 1973

The SPEAKER (Mr. Norton) took the
Chair at 4.30 p.m., and read prayers.

QUESTIONS (20): ON NOTICE
1. JETTES

Yundurup Area

Mr. JONES, to the Minister for Works:
(1) How many private authorised jet-

ties exist in the Murray and Ser-
pentine Rivers, where navigable,
and the Yundurup delta system?

(2) How many unauthorised jetties
are known to exist in this area?

(3) Who owns these unauthorised jet-
ties?

(4) What action is contemplated
against "Owners' of these unau-
thorised jetties?

(5) Has any reprimand had to be
issued to Persons with properties
in the delta area for interference
with natural herbage?

(a) If so, what were the locations of
these interferences with natural
herbage?

Mr. H. D. Evans (for Mr. JAMIESON)
replied:
(1) 478 jetties.
(2) Exact number not recorded.
(3) Not known.
(4) It is Intended to remove those

that do exist at a suitable oppor-
tunity.

(5) I believe some reprimands have
been issued by the local authority
but none from the Peel Inlet Con-
servation Advisory Committee.

(6) There has been interference with
the natural vegetation on the
banks in some places, particularly
in the Serpentine River.

2. WANNEROO ROAD
Widening

Mr. E. H. M. LEWIS, to the minister
for Works:
(1) What work is proposed to relieve

the traffic congestion in Wannerno
Road north of Royal Street?

(2) What Is the programming of this
work?

Mr. H. D. Evans (for Mr. JAMIESON)
replied:
(1) The Stirling City Council has em-

barked upon a programme for up-
grading Wanneroo Road between
Royal Street and Beach Road over
a period of three years, half the
cost of design and construction
being met by the Main Roads De-
partment.

(2) It is expected that this work will
be substantially completed during
the financial year 1974-75.

3. FOREIGN OWNERSHIP OF LAND
A.L.P. Caucus Committee

Sir CHARLES COURT, to the Pre-
mier:
(1) With reference to the answer he

gave to my question without
notice, 28th March, 1973, about a
radio report that the State A.LP.
caucus has set up a committee to
examine and report on overseas
ownership of land and Possible
legislation to control this type of
ownership, would he advise whe-
ther such committee has now
actually been set up in view of his
advice that the decision made In-
dicated only the intention to esta-
blish such a committee?

(2) If the committee has been estab-
lished, would he state-
(a) the terms of reference given

to the committee;
(b) the reason for its appoint-

ment;
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(c) the methods it will adopt in
making its studies and report;

(d) the assistance expected for
the committee from Govern-ment departments and Gov-
ernment officers?

(3) If the committee has not yet been
established, when is It expected
that it will be established?

Mr. Graham (for Mr. J, T. TONKIN)
replied:
(1) Yes.
(2) (a) (I) Whether it is necessary, or

desirable, to introduce a
scheme for the registra-
tion of aliens owning land
In the State; and

(ii) if it Is considered neces-
sary to do this, the means
by which registration
could be effected.

(b) Genuine concern over the pos-
sibility that ownership of land
will pass to an Increasing
extent from being owned by
Australians to that of foreign
ownership.

(c) This Is a matter for the com-
mittee to determine.

(d) Such information that is
readily available to members
of the public concerning the
ownership of land will be sup-
plied on application.

(3) Answered by (1).

POPULATION
Figures from 1965 to 1973

Sir CHARLES COURT, to the Pen-
inter:

Will lhe please list the State's
estimated population figures as
at 30th June for each of the years
1965 to 1972 and the estimated
figures as at 31st December, 1972
and 31st March, 1973?

Mr. Graham (for Mr. J. T. TONKIN)
replied:

30th June-
1965-825.525.
1966-848,100.
1967-879,179.
1968-915,042.
1969-954,846.
1970-991,354.
1971-1,030,469.
1972-1,053,182.

The figure for March, 1973, Is not
yet available.
The latest figure is for September,
1972-1,059,007.

5. WATER SUPPLIES
Jerraraun pup

Mr. W. G. YOUNG, to the Minister
for Water Supplies:

Further to my question of 5th
April regarding water supplies for
Jerramungup. what is the esti-
mated cost of the proposed works
at Jerramungup as outlined in the
answer to question (3) (b)?

Mr. H. D). Evans (for Mr. JAMIESON)
replied:

$210,000.

6. WATER SUPPLIES
Deficient Areas

Mr. W. G. YOUNG, to the Minister for
Agriculture:
(1) What is the basis whereby an

area of a shire can be declared
water deficient?

(2) What is the maximum distance
that a farmer is expected to cart
water?

Mr. H. D. EVANS replied:
(1) A shire council may request that

the whole or Part of a shire be
declared water deficient after In-
vestigations show that on-farm
supplies are depleted to the extent
that farmers must obtain supplies
from off-farm sources to maintain
stock.
The declaration Is made by the
Minister for Lands and Agricul-
ture on the recommendation of the
Farm Water Supply Advisory
Committee.

(2) After an area has been declared
water deficient the Farn Water
Supply Advisory Committee may
consider a request for setting up
a temporary Point of public sup-
ply to serve a group of farmers
whose carting distances--from the
nearest existing supplies--are In
excess of 20 miles.

'7. JUVENILE OFFENDERS
Broome Regional Prison

Mr. RIDGE, to the Minister repre-
senting the Chief Secretary:
(1) How many minors are currently

being detained at the Broome
regional prison?

(2) If any, what Is the age of each?
(3) What Is the term of sentence in

each instance?
(4) What form of-

(a) work;
(b) training;
(c) corrective treatment,
Is available to juvenile prisoners?
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(5) How is It determined that a minor
should be detained in a prison in
lleu of being transferred to a cor-
rective establishment for juven-
les?

(6) What plans does the Government
have for the provision in the north
of the State of an Institution or
treatment centre for juvenile
offenders?

Mr. TAYLOR replied:
(1) Two.
(2) (a) 14 years 8 months.

(b) 17 years 11 months.
(3) (a) 3 months.

(b) 1 month.
(4) (a) Both employed as cleaners.

(b) Nil-because of short sen-
tence.

(c) Nil-as above.
(5) It Is the prerogative of the court

to sentence a Juvenile to imprison-
ment, or to commit to the care of
the Department of Community
Welfare.

(0) The Department of Corrections
has no plans to build any juvenile
institutions.

8. JUVENILE OFFENDERS
Kimberley Lockcups

Mr. RIDGE. to the Minister repre-
senting the Minister for Police:
(1) How many minors are currently

being detained In the police lock-
ups at-
(a) Wyndham;
(b) Derby;
(c) Roebourne?

(2) If any, what is the age of each?
(3) What is the term of sentence in

each instance and what proportion
of It has already been served?

(4) What form of work, training and
corrective treatment is available
to juvenile prisoners?

(5) H-ow is it determined that a minor
should be detained In a police
lockup in lieu of being transferred
to a corrective establishment for
juveniles?

Mr. BICKERTON replied:
(1) (a) Nil.

(b) Nil.
(c) Three.

(2) 17 years,
15 years, and
15 years.

(3) Term of sentence and proportion
served-

17? year old-I month; 12 days.
15 year old-2 months; 5 days.
15 year old-? days; 3 days.

9.

10.

11.

(4) Work consists of gardening and&
cleaning. No other training or
corrective treatment is available.

(5) in the particular area juveniles.
are detained in lock-ups or gaos
unless the court recommends
otherwise, or other arrangements
are made by officers of the De-
partment of Community Welfare
who are notified and attend.
court.

This question was P~ostponed.

AUSTRALIAN GOVERNMENT
Meaning of Term

Mr. MENSAROS, to the Attorney-
General:
(1) Has he any knowledge of a recent

amendment to the Common-
wealth of Australia Constitution
Act and especially to Chapter II
of that Act?

(2) If not, can be explain why he and
some of his colleagues call the
executive Governiment of the Com-
monwealth of Australia and the
Queen's Ministers of State for the
Commonwealth respectively "Aus-
tralian Government" and "Aus-
tralian Minister"?

Mr. T, D. EVANS replied;
(1) NO,
(2) The Federal Government has de-

cided that use of the term asserts
that whilst Australia Is a feder-
ation, it Is also a nation and use
of the term is appropriate in the
circumstances.
This State Government by refer-
ring to Itself as the Western Aus-
tralian Government ensures the
significance of federation by in-
dicating that It is a vital part of
the Commonwealth of Australia.

INDUSTRIAL AGREEMENT
Civil and Civic and Building

Workers' Union
Mr. MENSAROS, to the Minister for
Labour:
(1) Has the industrial agreement (re-

ferred to In an article on page 16
of the Dlaily News on 3rd April,
1973 between Civil and Civic and
the Building Workers Industrial
Union) been registered with the
Industrial Commission?

(2) If so, could he table a copy of the
agreement?

Mr. TAYLOR replied:
(1) and (2) The agreement referred to

has not been registered with the
Industrial Commission. it is a
private agreement and is, there-
fore, not available to the com-
mission or the Government.
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12. HOUSING
Langford Project: Tenders

Mr. MENSAROS, to the Minister for
Housing:
(1) Was the tender for Langford, the

project referred to in an article on
page 16 of the Daily News on 3rd
April, 1973, a "design and con-
tract" tender or a tender only for
construction on plans and speci-
fications supplied by the State
Housing Commission?

(2) Who were the tendering con-
tractors and their respective
prices tendered?

Mr. BICKERTON replied:
(1) Tenders were for construction on

plans and specifications supplied
by the State Housing Commission.

(2) Tender results were:-
Group" A"-65 uints-wngrove precinct (Langf'ord).

8
Civil and Civic PLtY. Ltd................. OD00
SaXon Comtqruetton Ply. Ltd.... ....... 484,942
A. V. Jennings lndnittei (Anmt.) Ply. Ltd. 488,899
G,.W. Construction ted Developuseat Pty.

Ltd. .. . . . . 491,482
Landall Construction & Development Co. Pty.
Ltd 508,905

Pe2rth Construction Coa. Ply. Ltd...........534,295
Argus Betiding Co. PtY. Lt~d.........501,800
Andersons Constructions Ltd.........508,806

Group" BW-76 unlts-Wlrsgrove precinct (Langford),.

Civil & Civtc PtY. Ltd, 585,000
A. V. Teningd lndsistrin (Ast.) PLY. Mtd. .. 628,299
Jasxon Constructton Sty. Lwd..............630692
Laudall Construction end Development Co.

Sty. Ltd. nd...........639,995
G.K.WV. Consstruction an1)evelopmeist Pty.

Ltd...................44,725
Perth Con~t ruotlon Co. 1'ty. Ltd........675,9866
Argus Bulding Co. Pty. Ltd..........689.500
Andersons. Constructions 'Ltd.........788,631

Combined Tendering :
Groups "A" and fW-I4l unis-Wngrove precinct
(Langford).

civil a Civic Piy. Ltd. .-.............. 1,051,000
Saxonn Coastructlon Pty. Ltd............1,104,698
A. V. Jennings Industries (AnsI.) Pty. Ltd. 1,117,324
Landall Construction & Development Co. Pty.

Ltd. 1,1229-902
G.K.W. Contruciou and Development Sty.

Ltd. . . . . . 1,133,207
Perth Construction Co. Pty. Ltd.......1,209,09t
Argus Building Coa. Pty. Ltd.........1,250,000
Andersons Constriirtions Ltd.........1,334,%185

13. TOWN PLANNING
Arterial Coast Road

Mr. MENSAROS, to the Minister for
Town Planning:
(1) Now that the Metropolitan

Region Planning Authority has
disposed of the question of the
proposed coastal highway by not
making a decision after two years
on an issue which was described in
his answer to my question 23 of
20th March, 1973 as a "complex
one which is not quickly resolved",
can he say what the residents of
Swanbourne and Mount Claremont
- who have to suffer the heavy

through traffic - can expect in
regard to a new arterial coast
road?

(2) In particular, can it be eipected
that~-
(a) an authority will be set up

which is able to deal even
with complex town planning
questions;

(b) he will make a decision him-
self: or

(c) further inactivity will occur?
Mr. Bickerton (for Mr. DAVIES)
replied:
(1) The authority deferred its decision

so that local authorities repre-
senting the ratepayers in question
may have the opportunity of com-
menting before a decision is made.
It is obvious that any route south
of the army area must affect resi-
dential development and the al-
ternatives are the subject matter
referred to the District Planning
Committee.

(2) (a) The Metropolitan Region
Planning Authority is quite
capable of dealing with any
such matters and advising the
Government on the steps to
be taken.

(b) If the necessity arises, yes.
(c) Yes.

14. TOWN PLANNING
Allen Road Area: Rezoning of Land

Mr. RUSHTON, to the Minister for
Town Planning:
(1) Has any of the land Immediately

north and south of the Milen Road
alignment through to the South
Western Railway, Kehnscott, in
the Shires of Armadale-Kelmscott
and Gosnells, been rezoned urban?

(2) If not, have initiatives been taken
for the rezoning to urban of any
of this land?

(3) If so, what action has been taken?
Mr. Bickerton (for Mr. DAVIES)
replied:
(1) No.
(2) No submission has been made to

the Metropolitan Region Planning
Authority.

(3) Answered by (2).

15. TRADE UNIONS
Exemptions from Membership

Mr. McPRARLIN, to the Minister for
Labour:
(1) In what section of the Industrial

Arbitration Act Is it provided that
a person can claim exemption from
joining a trade union, or other
union which it encompasses?

826
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(2) Is the Industrial Registrar obliged
under the Act to accept the claims
for exemption without question?

(3) What are the terms under which
a person can claim exemption and
what obligation is imposed on the
person concerned?

Mr.
(1)
(2)

TAYLOR replied:
Section 61B.
Where application is made to the
registrar for exemption from
union membership on the grounds
of conscientious belief under sec-
tion 6113, the registrar can refuse
the application if he is satisfied
that the conscientious beliefs
expressed are not genuinely held.

(3) A Person may claim exemption
from union membership on the
grounds of conscientious belief,
but he is obliged under the Act to
make application for exemption in
the prescribed manner and pay to
the registrar an amount equi-
valent to the subscription pres-
cribed by the rules of the union
for membership thereof If exemp-
tion is granted (section 6111).

DEVELOPMENT
Kuwinana Industrial Area: Acreage

Mr. RUJSHTON, to the Minister for
Development and Decentralisation:
(1) Will he substantiate the Govern-

ment's earlier announcement that
the lcwinana industrial complex
was nearing saturation for the
establishment of further industry?

(2) What is the acreage of the Indus-
trial land still available in the
Kwlnana, Rockingham and Cock-
burn region for new industry?

(3) How much land has already been
applied for industrial purposes in
this region since 1952?
GRAHAM replied:
The term "saturation" In the an-
nouncement mentioned, referred
to particular types of industry and
the capacity of facilities and the
environment to meet the require-
ments of such industry.
For example, the expansion of the
Ewinana-based alumina industry
is being undertaken at Pinjarra
because of near saturation with
respect to this industry at
Kwinana.

(3) About 3.300 acres.

17. ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

Mining: Blackwood River
Mr. BLAIKIE, to the Minister for
Environmental Protection:
(1) Has the Director of Environ-

mental Protection completed a
report regarding advisability or
otherwise of mining in the Black-
wood River at Augusta?

(2) If "Yes" would he table a copy of
the report?

Mr. Bickerton (for Mr. DAVIES)
replied:
(1) No.
(2) Answered by (1).

18.

19.

Similar considerations would
apply, for example, to any pro-
posals for additional oil refineries
or power generating plants in the
area.

(2) Some 4,200 acres of existing indus-
trial zoned land remains unused
in the localities mentioned.

DTJNSBOROUOH SCHOOL
Reticulation

Mr. ELAIKIE, to the Minister for
Works:
(1) Have Plans been Prepared for the

reticulation of the Dunsborough
Primary school?

(2) If "Yes" what are the costs in-
volved and when is it expected that
these works will be completed?9

Mr. H. D. Evans (for Mr. JAMIESON)
replied:
(1) Yes.
(2) Estimated cost $2,150.

Work will be completed before
the commencement of next
summer.

BRUCE;LLOSIS
Eradication Programme

Mr. ELAIKIE, to the Minister for
Agriculture:
(1) Would he Please advise Govern-

ment Policy regarding eradication
of brucellosis?

(2) When Is it expected that the pro-
gramme will be completed?

(3) What is the estimated total cost.
to the scheme of-
(a) testing and diagnosis;
(b) compensation?

Mr. H. D. EVANS replied:
(1) Government Policy is to proceed

with the eradication of bovine
brucellosis on an active basis as
part of the national programme.

(2) The date when the programme
will be completed is not known.
However on Present indications it
would appear that the disease will
be reduced to a very low level.
within the next five years.

Mr.
(1)
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(3) At this stage it is not possible to
give an estimate of the total cost.
However, costs since the eradica-
tion programme commenced in
1970 are in the order of $800,000
for testing, diagnosis and ancil-
lary services, and $415,000 for
compensation which is a net
amount taking into account the
value of carcsses paid into the
fund.

POLICE
Drug Convictions

Mr. BLATIKIE, to the Minister repre-
senting the Minister for Police:
(1) What is the number of drug con-

victions in Western Australia since
30th June, 1972?

(2) Can he advise of drug convictions
in this period by classification. I.e.
lsd, heroin, etc.?

Mr. BICKERTON
(1) There were 330

Ing 250 person
charges.

(2) Cannabis-
L.S.D. ..
Opiates ..
Cocaine ..
Heroin ..
Miscellaneous

replied:
Iconvictions involv-
a, some on multiple

238
27

.... .... 51
4
4
6

Total 330

(2' No. The State and Common-
wealth Governments have concur-
rent powers with respect to
Aborigines.

(3) It is not the Intention of the State
Government to relinquish State
sovereign rights.

(4) and (5) The referendum did not
confer any Powers on the State.
but gave the Commonwealth
power to legislate with regard to
Aborigines.

LIVE SHEEP
Restriction on Export: Grievance

MR. W. G. YOUNG (Roe) [4.48 p.m.]:
In the absence of the Premier I ask the
Deputy Premier whether he has seen the
article on the front page of today's issue
of the Daily News in which it is reported
that the Trades and Labor Council has
approached the Premier asking that the
ecxport of live sheep from Western Austra-
lia be restricted. Mr. Coleman, the Secre-
tary of the T.L.C., is reported as follows--

He said the export of live sheep had
resulted In unemployment within the
meat industry and higher meat
prices...

The big increase in the export of
live sheep In the past 12 months had
been a major factor in depleting the
local market.

This issue was raised some time ago in
QUESTION WITHOUT NOTICE the House, and once again the assertions

ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS in the newspaper are not correct. The
article continues-

Commonwealth Takeover An Agriculture Department spokes-
Mr. HIITCHINSON. to the Premier: man said today in the nine months
(1) Is the report In The West Austra- ending March 31 the number of live

lian of the 10th April correct in sheep exported was 502,000.
that "the West Australian Gov- In the Previous 12 months 660,000
eminent will hand over control of live sheep were exported to overseas
Aboriginal affairs to the Common- markets.
wealth Government, probably by If my arithmetic Is correct the percentage
July 1st"? exported so far this year Is fractionally

(2) Is not the control of Aboriginal less than the percentage exported last
affairs one of the residual respon- year. Consequently the reference to a
sibilities of State Government? steep increase is not correct.

(3) Can the State Government give Another aspect to be considered Is that
up State sovereign rights by ad- the animal under discussion is exported
mninistrative action only? as a specialised item to the Middle East

(4) Does he consider that the referen- because people in those countries will not
dum regarding Aboriginal affairs eat mutton or any type of meat not killed
that was carried some years ago by themselves under sacrificial and Mos-
gives the Government the means Ism rites.
and the power to hand over the This specialised trade, built up over the
control of such State rights? years, is enjoyed by a small number of

(5) If the answer to (4) Is "No", will farmers.
hel teplahwthehngoe We hear criticism of the Price of beef
will traake place? J TTNKN but, at the moment, there Is no threat to

Mr. rahm (or r. J T.TONIN) ban the export of beef. I would oppose
replied: that, too. This is a direct attack on a small
(1) Yes-subject to agreement being section of primary producers who have

reached in a number of areas. built up a specialised trade. For years
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they have fostered this trade with the
Middle East. A shipping line carries the
sheep direct to the Middle East ports.

I am not aware of the percentage but
the majority of the 500,000 exported so far
this year would be heavyweight wethers.
If a leg of mutton from one of these ani-
mals were displayed in a butcher's shop not
one housewife would buy it. The leg would
weigh in the vicinity of 10 to 14 lb. depend-
ing on the size of the animal and its con-
dition. I cannot imagine a housewife who
wants to buy one pound of chops buying a
14 lb. leg as an alternative.

Mr. T. D. Evans: Are You aware of any
action taken by the Western Australian
Government to restrict the export?

Mr. W. 0. YOUNG: An approach has
been made.

Mr. T. D. Evans: Are you aware of any
action taken by the Western Australian
Government to restrict the export?

Mr. W. 0. YOUNG: An approach has
been made by the T.L.C. and I ask the
Government not to take any action. This
is my reason for being on my feet.

Mr. Hartrey: It is not a grievance.
Mr. W. G. YOUNG: The shortage of

sheep-which, it is claimed, has brought
about the rise in Prices-is seasonal. It
happens every year. Mr. Coleman stated
unemployment figures but these, too, re-
flect something that happens every Year
at this time. There is a drop in the mutton
market because the fodder on the proper-
ties has run out. Sheep lose condition and
are not coming forward. Further, flocks
have been depleted by four bad seasons.
During this time there were low wool
prices and people disposed of their stock
to concentrate on grain and other
products.

The Secretary of the Meat Industry Em-
ployees' Union (Mr. Bennett) has said that
the retrenchments occur about the same
time every year and it is something with
which the industry has to learn to live.

Evidently Mr. Coleman, who is Secretary
of the Trades and Labor Council, does not
know about this because he says unemnploy-
ment has resulted through the export of
sheep. This type of sheep has been ex-
ported for Years. If Mr. Coleman's state-
ment is correct, why has not something
been done before now?

meat has been singled out because it is
said that the price of meat is too high.
'The other evening the Minister for Labour
told us about all the other articles which
have increased in price. Not one of these
has been singled out with the suggestion
that its export be restricted. Primary pro-
ducers alone have been singled out and
they will not be able to export their sheep
if the Government takes any action.

Mr. T. D. Evans: Many of the articles
referred to were imports.

Mr. W. 0. YOUNG: I do not care
whether they were imports or exports.

Mr. T. D. Evans: Unfortunately, they
were imports.

Mr. W. G. YOUNG: If the Government
wants to take action, why not impose res-
trictions on imports if they are too dear
for the people or Western Australia to
buy?

I am talking now about the export of
live sheep to a specialised market, the
Middle East. which is one of the poorest
countries in the world. People in the Middle
East can afford to buy the meat at the
prices asked but people in Western Aus-
tralia are saying that the Prices are too
high. Nonetheless, Western Australia has
an affluent society. We have heard mem-
bers opposite say how much the economy
has improved.

Mr. Taylor: When 50 to 100 men are
put off, do You object that the people who
represent them should make an approach
to the Government?

Mr. W. G. YOUNG: This happens every
year; the unemployment is seasonal. At
no time Previously has a threat been made
to stop the export of live sheep. Last
year more sheep were exported from West-
ern Australia than have been exported
this year.

Mr. Taylor: It is not a threat, but a
request.

Mr. W. 0. YOUNG: I am reading that
into the article because only a fortnight

Mr. Taylor: This is typical.
Mr. W. G. YOUNG: -there was the

threat of industrial action to stop the
sheep from being loaded. I do nnt know
who saved the day. Perhaps a request
has been made this time and it is not a
threat. To my mind it is a sequel to the
articles in the Press a fortnight ago when
the union said that it would not load
the sheep.

Mr. Taylor: It is a legitimate approach.
Mr. W. G YOUNG: I do not have very

long and' I ant to complete my remarks.
I wonder whether this is some form of
conspiracy by the unions to attack primary
production.

Mr. T. D. Evans: Not at all.

Mr. H. D. Evans: You are carried away.

Mr. W. 0. YOUNG: Every second morn-
ing there is a threat of some kind in the
paper. One day it is a threat to ban wool
shipments and the next day it is a threat
to ban the loading of meat because of
high prices. Half the iron ore Ports are
tied up through union action and that
mineral is not leaving Western Australia.
The Transport Workers' Union is making
owner-drivers join thle union if they come
to Perth to obtain fuel for seeding.
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Mr. Jones:. Do you not bellieve in unions?
Mr. W. G. YOUNG: I ask the Deputy

Premier whether he has read the artcle
and is aware of its implication. If so, will
he see that no action is taken against
people who have bulit up a specialised
market? These people have spent a great
deal of money in developing this export
trade in what are called shipper wethers
and their counterpart, ram lambs. Ram
lambs are a new trade which has been
developed in the last year or two.

It is a specialised market and it is
difficult to produce the animals. Mostly
they are 95 lb. live weight, or at least
between 93 and 97 lb. Anyone with any
knowledge of the subject knows that this
is a specialised trade. Unfortunately, some
of the profit is going because of the
difficulty to produce this type of animal.
Now we have a threat-

Mr. Taylor: A request.
Mr. W. G. YOUNG: All right, a request

that these should not be exported. What
will happen if the animal is kept on the
property? If the sheep is in prime con-
dition now, in a few weeks' time it will
be useless because it will have lost its
condition. Housewives will not buy this
meat and nor will any one else.

in conclusion I refer once again. to the
article in the paper. It states-

Three women's organisations. said
today they were not supporting the
housewives' boycott on meat.

These are the Country Women's Associa-
tion, the Housewives' Association., and the
Rural Women's Association. They have
dissociated themselves from this and I
hope the Government will do likewise.

MR. GRAHAM (Balcatta-Deputy Prem-
ier) [4.58 P.M.]: I can appreciate the con-
cern expressed by the member for Roe, but
I wish he had not become inflammatory
in his utterances by suggesting that there
is some sort of conspiracy on the part of
the unions in respect of this matter. I
do not think sentiments expressed In those
terms achieve anything.

As has been pointed out by way of
interjection, the trade union movement is
concerned because numbers of its mem-
bers are being dismissed from their em-
ployment. It is true to say that at ap-
proximately this time of the year some-
thing akin to this occurs regularly. Indeed,
I fancy having heard on "A.M."~ this
morning-or perhaps it was yesterday
morning-the Secretary of the Trades and
Labor Council mentioning this fact and
at the same time indicating that the
former employees would be able to find
alternative employment in other areas of
the State.

Mr. W. 0. Young: This has always
happened.

Mr. GRAHAM: This has occurred regu-
larly.

Mr. Gayfer: If they are kept on and
stand around doing nothing, this will
keep the price of meat up.

Mr. GRAHAM: I have already indicated
it is a natural reaction for responsible
officers of the trade union movement to
feel some concern when the dismissal of
a number of employees is involved.
Those dismissed may or may not find
employment suitable to them with a degree
of convenience. After all, these people are
not statistics; they are human. beings.
Many of them are family men with homes.
Of course it is possible for them to go to
places many hundreds of miles away but
doubtless they would prefer to remain
where they are.

The Secretary of the Trades and Labor
Council has decided to ask the Govern-
ment to take some steps in regard to
imposing a curb on the export of meat
overseas--that is to say, live sheep. I
should point out here and now, of course,
that the State has no authority in this
area. The Commonwealth is responsible
for the issue of export licenses. No official
approach has been received by the Gov-
ernment as yet. We knew nothing about
this until the issue was raised-I had
not read the article in. the Press.

Mr. W. G. Young: I did not know until
I purchased a copy of the Daily News
at three o'clock.

Mr. GRAHAM: I repeat that this action
is indicative of the concern felt by an
organisation, not only for the employees,
but also for the many people worried by
the very high price of meat at the present
time. Whilst it may be true that many
people In the community can pay the
additional cost without undue disturbance
to their budgets, in many homes it will
be a very real burden. Once again I believe
the spokesman for the Trades and Labor
Council is doing the right and proper
thing by expressing his concern on behalf
of these people.

Mr. W. 0. Young: Meat is not the only
commodity where the Price Is rising. Why
do we have this attack on the meat in-
dustry?

Mr. GRAHAM: I am afraid I am not
personally responsible for the meat pur-
chases in my home. Therefore, I do not
have any idea of how much the price has
risen.

Mr. O'Neil: You have not been eating
meat this week, have you?

Mr. GRAHAM: By common Consent it
seems to be accepted that the Price of
meat has risen very steeply in, recent
times. As the member for Roe has pointed
out, this Price rise has been brought about
by the Particular circumstances. We usually
see a slight rise at this time of the year,
but because of the four dry seasons--in
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fact, almost drought years in certain areas
-the rise has been much steeper this
year.

Another factor is the-shall we say-
fortunate Increase in the price of wool.
Many farmers have taken advantage of
the wool price instead of sending their
stock to market. F'urthermore, because of
the downturn In wool prices In the pre-
ceding years, many of the farmers had
decreased thefr stock numbers. This again
is quite understandable, and I repeat that
the Government is aware of the many
factors which are responsible for the rise
in price. However, the people at the end
of the line-those who are being called
upon to pay the high prices-are not aware
of the circumstances behind the rise. I
suppose they are not quite as analytically
disposed as they Could be.

Mr. Gayfer: What about the live wether
exports?

Mr. GRAHAM: It has been pointed out
that generally speaking the wethers which
are being exported would not be accept-
able to the local market, therefore this
would not be likely to have a severe Impact
on the local price.

Mr. W. 0. Young: Of course the ram
lambs would not be eaten at all.

Mr. GRAHAM: That Is so. Even with
killed meat, some old pensioner sheep-
if I may use that term-are quite accept-
able for the export market but they would
not be acceptable here.

Mr. E. H. At!. Lewis: If they are exported
live, they suit that particular market.

Mr. GRAHAM: That is so, in respect
of a particular market. I do not feel this
Issue should be blown up out of proportion.
A representative of the unions, of the
ordinary average citizens in the com-
munity, has expressed concern at the high
price of meat. He has submitted, or ap-
parently intends to submit, a proposal to
the Goverrnent that the export of live-
stock should be limited In the hope of a
favourable effect upon prices for local con-
sumers.

Mr. W. 0. Young: Would you agree he Is
basing his theory on a wrong premise?
This type of meat has no effect on the
local market; it is meat which would not
be exported.

Mr. GRAHAM: I would not be quite as
emphatic as that. In my view the impact
would be minimal, for the reasons I have
outlined previously.

No request has been made to the Gov-
ernment; we are not aware of the details
of the complaint. In any event, the State
Government has no legal power or author-
ity in respect of export licenses; that
authority resides with the Commonwealth.
I believe it can be left to the good sense
of the Government of Western Australia
to deal with the problem when it arises.

Mr. MoPharlin: This proposed move Is
In addition to other moves by. trade uions
throughout Australia. In Sydney it Is pro-
Posed to ban wool exports, and this adds
to the problem.

Mr. GRAHAM: That may have rele-
vance to something, but It is certainly not
relevant to the meat situation in Western
Australia.

Finally, I say to the member for Roe
and to the Deputy Leader of the Country
Party who has interJected, the mak-
ing of inflammatory statements will not
assist anything. As I have said, some
families can pay the extra price for meat
or other essential items such as foodstuffs
or wearing apparel, without undue hard-
ship. However, to many people In the
community, these Increased prices are a
real burden. It Is from these people that
we hear the cries of distress. However,
responsibility will prevail; the Govern-
ment will listen sympathetically to any
approaches made to It, but It will make Its
own decisions responsibly. I do not think
any section of the community needs to
feel concern at the end result.

CONSUMER PROTECTION
Pyramid Selling: Grievance

MR. THOMPSON (Darling Range) (5.07
p.m.]: I asked the Minister for Consumer
Protection a question yesterday in regard
to a pyramid selling organisation known
as "Dare to be Great". I now ask the Minl-
ister to take urgent action in regard to this
organisation, and I will outline my reasons
for this request.

Dare to be Great was sponsored by a
man named Glen W. Turner, an American
who has visited Australia only a few times.
Mr. Turner's first enterprise in Australia
was a cosmetic firm known as Koscot (Aus-
tralia) Pty. Limited, which commenced
operation on a pyramid selling system in
September, 1970. It had a paid-up capital
of $2 and many distributorships were sold
in the Eastern States at $2,000 each, all
of which are now worthless.

Mr. Bickerton: Private enterprise!

Mr. THOMPSON: flare to be Great is
described by its promoters as a self -rnotiva-
tion course. However, like all pyramid sell-
ing organisations, the return for selling a
franchise is much greater than the return
for selling the real product. For this rea-
son Dare to be Great sells a franchise at
various levels to unsuspecting people, and
the only tangible products being sold are
tape recorders, cassette tapes, and books.
Members will recall that we saw such
articles tabled in the House last week.

The aim of Dare to be Great is to sell
1,500 distributorships at $3,000 each in
New South Wales. Each of these distribut-
ors is given the right to sell unlimited
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numbers of sell-motivation courses at be-
tween $500 and $2,000 each. It is esti-
mated that this company has grossed
$4,SOD,000 In New South Wales alone to
date.

A number of disturbing features about
the operation of this Organisation have
emerged in New South Wales. The opera-
tions appear to have begun in country
centres such as Wollongong and New
castle. The organisation offers to show
people how to make huge sums of money.

Initial recruiting was undertaken by
dodgers and cold canvassing was carried
out in the streets by men in gaily coloured
suits and flamboyant clothes. The people
interested in the course were taken by
chartered bus to expensive hotels, such as
the Chevron in Sydney and motels in Pen-
rith and the Blue Mountains.

On the trip the passengers were led to
chant about money, expensive cars, and
dreams of living in luxury. The atmosphere
at the meetings held at these various ven-
ues has been described as hysterical, and
many People committed themselves to ex-
penses they obviously could not afford.

Time magazine has described this Or-
ganisation as appealing to and preying
upon life's losers. In one instance in New
South Wales a migrant who does not speak
English at all was sold one of these dis-
tributorships. The idea was that he would
sell distributorships to other migrants who
could not speak the language. Members
who stood around the Table of the House
the other night and listened to these tapes
will be aware that quite obviously a person
who did not understand the language
would not make money with the items he
had purchased.

Mr. O'Connor: I would not think he
would make any money anyhow.

Mr. THOMPSON* There have been a
number of reported court actions taken
against Turner's various companies in the
United States. It was reported in News-
week of the 11th September, 1972, that 42
States had taken legal action against
Turner's companies. He was indicted in
Michigan and Florida on charges of con-
spiracy to cheat and defraud.

The SPEAKER: There is too much aud-
ible conversation.

Mr. THOMPSON: The Council of Better
Business Bureaus, in Washington, D.C.,
Says that 39 States have taken action
against Koscot Interplanetary Incorpor-
ated. In 1912 the British Government con-
fiscated funds Turner had in an English
bank to prevent their transfer to Switzer-
land. A week later the British Ministry, of
Trade and Industry asked a court to wind
up Koscot.

In Sydney recently, about the only de-
fence that Turner was able to produce
when being criticised on TV was to say,
"They ridiculed Jesus Christ, too",

Other unsavoury reports have been made
about this particular company. Some of
the people who went along to the functions
at expensive hotels Just to see what it was
all about, were caught up In this atmos-
phere of hysteria and agreed to pay out
money they could not afford. When they
revealed to the promoters of Dare to be
Great that they did not have the f unds
to buy distributorships, they were urged to
borrow money from the bank or some
other lending institution. So that the
bank or the lending Institution would not
suspect something untoward, the pro-
moters supplied them with a list of 23
reasons to put forward for an advance.
This included the supposed purchase of
a new oar, or additions to their houses.

These very sharp-I would even say
crooked-practices are going on in Austra-
lia, and there is evidence of them in Perth
at the present time. I am aware that the
Minister has indicated he proposes to in-
troduce legislation to curb this sort of
nonsense, but I urge him to take action
far quicker than he may have intended
because such organisatlons are exploiting
Western Australians today. I believe the
members on this side of the House will
support any move to prohibit this very un-
savoury type of organisation.

MR. TAYLOR (Cockburn-Minister for
Consumer Protection) [5.14 p.m.]: Apart
from the opening words of the member
for Darling Range, I was not sure at whom
the grievance was aimed. However, it
transpires from his closing words that It
is aimed at the Government, and perhaps
me, to ask that we move more quickly In
taking action against these particular
people. I would like to go over a few of
the facts in connection with pyramid sell-
ing In an attempt to give him some
answers,

Firstly, I would point out that I have
listened to some of the tapes. I took them
with me to Kalgoorlie and sat listening to
them for several hours. I am not sure of
their value, but perhaps members will
watch me over the next few months to
see if I improve! I agree with the member
for Darling Range that the content of the
tapes is fairly innocuous: in fact I would
say it is something like the type of talk
we hear from the other side of the
H-ouse. We hear statements of fact which
then lead on to innuendos, and cases are
attempted to be built up from there. One
example which comes to mind quickly
-and I think it is a classic--was pro-
vided by the member for Narrogin yester-
day in the punch line of his speech. He
said he fully believed in local government,
and, therefore, the Bill should be thrown
out. The first part of his statement was
right and everyone would agree with It,
but the conclusion which followed would
not necessarily be agreed with by .Ul
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people. There are some experts on this
type of argument on the other side of
the House. That is the type of material
contained on the tapes.

This problem has been considered for
a long time. If the former Minister for
Justice were in this Chamber I would
have interJected and asked him what
be did during his period of office. I under-
stand the matter has been discussed at
meetings of Attorneys-General through-
out Australia over a number of years, and
has been referred to committees for exam-
ination. It has been found most difficult
to try to frame some form of legislation
which is reasonable to the bulk of the
groups Involved whilst still protecting the
Public from the excesses of this type of
practice.

Mr. T'. D. Evans: It is a question of
definition.

Mr. TAYLOR: As the Attorney-General
points out, it Is a matter of definition.
in fact, I am informed there are legit-
imnate forms of enterprise based on the
pyramid system, and it is difficult Indeed
to frame legislation to outlaw a specific
practice without harming the substantial
body of other organisations which have
been in business for a long time.

Mr. Thompson: Will you consult the
Leader of the Opposition in New South
Wales, who is to introduce a Bill?

Mr. TAYLOR: in this grievance the
honourable member is obviously support-
ing the Leader of the Opposition in New
South Wales and criticising me.

Mr. Thompson: I am not Supporting
his statement: I am merely asking if you
will consult with him.

Mr. TAYLOR: Generally in British law
we make the point that no-one shall suffer
as a result of the excesses of one particu-
lar section, and that we cannot punish
many people for the excesses of one per-
son. if we attempt to frame legislation at
this time and ban the whole system we
would do more harm to the reputable
businesses than we would to the people
concerned in this Issue.

The second Point is that if in framing
legislation we attempt to name a company
or a group I feel we would be transgress-
ing a principle of British justice. The
Opposition did just that in regard to
scientology, and we made the point at the
time that the Government, by attempting
to proscribe an organisation, was intro-
ducing an attitude that had no place in
a Parliament such as ours. In any case
nothing is achieved. In the case of scien-
tology the legislation had to be very care-
fully framed because the group changed
its name and called itself the Church of
the New Faith. So one must try to cover
all alternatives. If one banned "Dare to

be Great" then by changing the title to
"Dare to be Greater" the purpose of the
legislation could be circumvented.

As I said, it has been found most difli-
cult to provide legislation to cover this
practice, The former Commonwealth Gov-
ernment claimed that it could not do so,
and left the matter to the States. We have
tried very hard to find something that
would work, but it is most difficult indeed.
Basically, we have a practice which is an
extreme of a situation we already
tolerate in part. The "hard sell" which
the honourable member explained to the
House-and we are aware of it-is an ex-
tension of the technique used by people
such as used-car salesmen who sell a car
worth $500 for the price of $700. It is sim-
lar to the situation in which a salesgirl
sells a $500 fur coat to a woman who does
n'flt need it. This is an extreme situation,
but it is no worse because of the fact that
It is more extreme.

These people are taking advantage of
others who are gullible and who have in one
sense only themselves to blame. They are
to blame because they see the product and
listen to the tapes and get carried away:
and then they spend large sums of money
to buy the product. All of us at some time
or other become carried away and buy
things we do not really need, and Pay more
than we should. This is merely an exten-
sion of that problem and that practice.

Whilst I understand the grievance of
the member for Darling Range, real diffi-
culties are involved. Many States and the
Commonwealth have tried to frame suit-
able legislation which will protect people
from a particular group without affecting
the bulk; but so far suitable legislation
has eluded Governments.

Mr. Thompson: What about a cooling
down period after they accept Initially?
Would not that achieve the aim?

Mr. May: We tried to bring that about
in relation to door-to-door sales, but your
Government opposed it.

BILLS (8): INTRODUCTION AND
FIRST READING

1. Sale of Land Act Amendment Bill.
2. Legal Cnntribution Trust Act Amend-

ment Bill.
3. Property Law Act Amendment Bill.

Bills introduced, on motions by Mr.
T. D. Evans (Attorney-General),
and read a first time.

4. Excessive Prices Prevention Bill.
Bill introduced, on motion by Mr.

Taylor (Minister for Prices Con-
troll, and read a first time.

5. Workers' Compensation Act Amend-
ment Bill.

6. Long Service Leave Act Amendment
B3ill.
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7. Trade Descriptions and Flse Adver- Minister there would Indicate that tie
tisements Act Amendment Bill.

Bills introduced, on motions by Mr.
Taylor (Minister for Labour),* and
read a first time.

8. Metropolitan Market Act Amendment
Bill.

Bill introduced, on motion by Mr. H.
D2. Evans (Minister for Agriculture),
and read a first time.

TRAFFIC ACT AMENDMENT BILL
Receipt and First Reading

Bill received from the Council; and, on
motion by Mr. Jamieson (Minister for
Works), read a first time.

LAPSED BILLS
Restoration to Notice Paper: Council's

Message

Message from the Council received and
read notifying that It had agreed to re-
sume consideration of the undermentioned
Bills at the stages which they had reached
during the Previous session-

Electoral Act Amendment Bill.
Acts Amendment (Abolition of the

Punishment of Death and Whip-
ping) Bill.

EDUCATION ACT AMENDMENT BILL
Third Reading

MR. T. D. EVANS (Kalgoorlie-Minis-
ter for Education) (5.29 p.m.]: I move-

That the Bill be now read a third
time.

Before the Bill leaves the Legislative
Assembly I wish to indicate that as of,
and only as of, today further consideration
has been given to the principle of match-
ing the Commonwealth in respect of the 20
per cent, of the present assessed national
figure. The undertaking given by Press
statement on the 29th November, 1972,
that the Western Australian Government
would match the Commonwealth over a
Period of two years, was given, of course.
prior to the Federal election.

Whilst I am not able to indicate at this
Juncture that a definite decision has been
made, I am indicating the possibility that
a decision could be made and that notifi-
cation of that decision could be given by
the Minister in another place when the
Bill is introduced there. This Is not an
undertaking but a consideration that the
Government proposes to match the Com-
monwealth to the full extent of 20 per
cent. in 1973.

I do not want it to be taken as an
undertaking; I am merely pointing out
that consideration is being given to this
matter. Assuming the Bill passes the third
reading in this House and is introduced
in another place, it could be that the

Government would match the Common-
wealth to the full extent of 20 per cent.
In 1973.

That matter is under consideration. I
was not able to give this Indication pre-
viously, but I am making the announce-
ment now, so that It cannot be said after-
wards that the Bill left this House with
one understanding and was Introduced in
another place with another understanding.
If there are any queries from members I
am prepared to answer them.

MR. E. H. M. LEWIS (Moore) 15.32
p.m.): Is is not a fact that in his contri-
bution to the second reading debate, in
referring to the Commonwealth's under-
taking to pay non-Government schools the
20 per cent. of the assessed national aver-
age, the Minister said-

This State has also agreed to match
the Commonwealth grant progres-
sively?

MR. MENSAROS (Floreat) 15.33 p.m.]:
I welcome the statement made by the
Minister. I understand this is not an
undertaking.

Mr. T. D. Evans: It Is not an under-
taking, but it is something which may
eventuate.

Mr. MENSAROS: The Minister has an-
nounced that this is something which may
eventuate. If it does, it will place the
non-Government schools In a better posi-
tion than they were in when the Minister
made his second reading speech. It is
very commendable for the Government to
do what the Minister has outlined, because
of the constant complaints which have
come from non-Government schools that
salary rises have occurred In the mean-
time and this to a certain extent upset
the original understanding and made it
difficult for them to continue their bud-
getry aims as a result of the flow-on of
salary rises to their teachers.

MR. T. D. EVANS (Kcalgoorle-Minister
for Education) (5.34 pm.]: I thank both
members for their comments. In answer
to the member for Moore, it is true that
when I introduced the second reading I
gave an undertaking which must be un-
derstood as being based upon the continu-
ance of the assessed national figure. It was
an undertaking that we would match the
Commonwealth. However, if no assessed
figure is arrived at in 1973 to be applic-
able to 1974 then my statement must be
construed in that light. At the present
time I have no clear indication at all as
to what form the recommendations of the
new schools commission will be in; but an
indication can be given that this Gov-
ermnent is a firm believer in the dual sys-
tern of education.
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The Government is deeply conscious of
the difficult times being experienced by
non-Government schools in endeavouring
to match revenue, which is derived by way
of fees, with the ever-increasing costs In
regard to the Payment of lay teachers.

Mr. E. H. M. Lewis: Did the Minister
say that the State also agreed to match
the Commonwealth grant progressively?

Mr. T. D. EVANS: The undertaking was
given to join with the Commonwealth in
meeting 20 per cent. of the assessed
national figure, but if a national assessed
figure is not to continue I cannot main-
tain such an undertaking. I do not want
to be accused of saying that when the
Bill leaves this House we varied the situa-
tion as far as the non-Government schools
are concerned. We have received several
requests to make every effort to pay the
full 20 per cent, in 1973. Serious con-
sideration is being given to that matter,
but the fact is I am not able to make a
decision as the Treasurer is away else-
'where dealing with constitutional matters.

I thank the member for Floreat for his
comments, and I assure him-as I have
assured the member for Moore-that the
Government is deeply conscious of the
plight of the independent schools.

Question put and passed.
Bill read a third time and transmitted to

the Council.

MINING ACT AMENDMENT BILL
Third Reading

Bill read a third time, on motion by Mr.
May (Minister for Mines), and transmitted
to the Council.

ACTS AMENDMENT (ROAD SAFETY
AND TRAFFIC) BILL

Report

Report of Committee adopted.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT BOUNDARIES
Town and Shire of Northam: Motion
MR. O'NEIL (East Melville-Deputy

Leader of the Opposition) [5.37 i.mi.l: I
want to indicate at the outset that when I
move the motion I shall leave out two
words now appearing in the last line of
paragraph (a) of the motion on the notice
paper. I move-

That, having regard to the sub-
missions made by the Town of
Northam and the Shire of Northam
on 2nd February, 1973, to the Min-
ister for Local Government contain-
ing:-

0) a request by the Town of Nor-
tham supported by the Shire
of Northam to withdraw a
petition dated 4th October.
1972, lodged by the Town of

Northamn seeking the amalga-
mation of the two aulthorities;
and

(it) a conjoint request for bound-
ary alterations between the
two authorities,

it is the opinion of this House that:-
(a) the hearing of the petition re-

ferred to by the Local Gov-
ernment Boundaries Commis-
sion scheduled to commence
on Tuesday. 20th March. 1973.
should be discontinued, and

(b) the request for alteration of
existing boundaries between
the two authorities be given
early consideration by the
Minister for Local Govern-
ment.

No doubt the House would like an explan-
ation, of the reason for leaving out the
two words which relate to the abandon-
ment of the hearing scheduled to com-
mence on the 20th March, 1973. Of course,
it is not possible for the House to con-
sider that the hearing should be aband-
oned, because that date has passed.

As I understand the position, the hear-
ing of the petition may be discontinued
even though there is no actual hearing of
the facts of the case before the Boundaries
Commission today. I believe it 'will be
some time before the hearing is completed
legally as a determination and recommen-
dation have not yet been made.

Notice was given of my intention to move
this motion on the opening day of the
present session of Parliament, the reason
being that the matter was scheduled to be
heard by the Boundaries Commission at
10.00 am. on the first official working day
of this session; that is, on Tuesday, the
20th March. It was appreciated that this
matter could not be debated, because as it
is a private member's motion it must await
the completion of the Address-In-Reply
debate.

I do not think the motion has lost any
of its validity, because it still expresses
an opinion that there should be no recom-
mendation from the Boundaries Commis-
sion. The commission has heard the
evidence presented by the Interested
parties, but to the best of my knowledge
no recommendation has been made. For
that reason the hearing can be regarded
as still in Progress.

The story behind the motion is a fairly
simple one. For a long period of time the
Town of Northam, by mutual arrangement
wi~th the Shire of Northam, received a
contribution from the shire to help with
the provision of amenities in the town for
use by the people of the town and the
people of the shire.

A dispute between these two local
authorities arose as to the quantum and
the nature of the assistance being given.
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They were at loggerheads for some fairly
considerable time, according to the in!for-
mation that has been made available to
me. The point was arrived at, more by
nature of a threat than anything else,
where the Town of Northamn lodged an
appropriate petition to swallow up the
Shire of Northam.

As I understand the Position, the motion
for lodging a petition was carried at a
meeting of the local authority, but after
several months had elapsed it was dis-
covered that the action desired by the
local authority had not been taken by the
Town Clerk of Northam. So the matter
was revived, and the appropriate petition
went forward.

Probably there was a change of staff
and a change of membership. In any
case consultations on the Issue in dispute
-namely, the assistance to be given by the
shire-were continued until the two local
authorities were able to agree on an alter-
native method of solving their problems.
The agreement arrived at Included the
amount of assistance to be given to the
town by the shire. Secondly, mutual
agreement was reached on the variation
of boundaries between the two local
authorities.

This being the case, the two local
authorities conjointly requested that the
petition be withdrawn, because there was
nothing further to argue about. The point
was made that if the petition to amalga-
mate was heard there would not be any-
body present to present the case for amal-
gamnation, and the evidence from both
aggrieved parties would be to the extent
that they had nothing to argue about,
and therefore the Boundaries Commission
had nothing upon which to make a recom-
mendation.

We can draw an analogy of a person
who Ea a result of some grievance decides
to take the matter to court. However,
before the court hearing eventuates the
'arties In dispute mutually agree that

their difficulties have ceased to exist, and
so the action Is withdrawn. It would be
completely farcical for these two people,
who have mutually agreed on the solution
of their problem, to go before the court,
especially in view of the expense Involved,
simply for the purpose of asking the judge
to put a rubber stamp on their decision.
In any case If that were to happen the
judge would have nothing to act upon.

That is the situation that evolved in
respect of the petition. What happened
beyond that was that the Minister for
Local Government declined to withdraw
the petition. As I understand the position.
he was advised by his officers that he had
no power to withdraw the petition and
that It must proceed. That seems to be a
rather farcical situation. So, the local
authorities obtained the legal advice of

Mr. Howard Smith, Q.C., who is considered
to be a fairly well qualified legal practi-
tioner.

To show how closely these maters were
related to the timing of the hearing, and
so on, the advice was tendered to the
local auithorities In the first place on the
14th March, 1973. It must be remembered
that the hearing was not to take place
until the 20th. I do not know whether
the sum total of this opinion and recom-
mendation was forwarded to the Minister.
because there is a recommendation re-
garding the action available to the local
authority. Perhaps the local authority
did not forward that recommendation to
the Minister; I should think it would not.
The opinion was forwarded to the Minis-
ter, however, because In replies to qties-
tions we were informed that the Minister
was aware of the opinion.

Mr. Nalder: They would not approach
their local member because he would con-
sider it as being political.

Mr. O'NEIL: I do not know whether
the local member was approached.

Mr. Mclver: You will hear from the
local member; do not worry about that.

Mr. O'NEIL: This matter came to the
notice of the Leader of the Opposition (Sir
Charles Court) because he was requested
by the local authorities to receive a depu-
tation in the matter. I think that both
the shire president and the mayor of the
Town of Northam, the two clerks, and
some others were Present at the deputa-
tion. I was also present.

At that time there was an indication
that the people concerned had not been
able to get to see the Minister and talk
the problem over. It seemed that up to
that time the Minister had declined to
take any action to withdraw, or to have
the petition withdrawn.

The Minister had indicated-I think
through the local member-that the ad-
vice of his officers-and I presume It was
the officers of the Department of Local
Government-was to the effect that the
Minister had no power to request a with-
drawal of the petition.

After that slight divergence let us get
back to the facts of the case. The eminent
Queen's Counsel to whom I have referred
was invited to express an opinion on the
following matters--

(a) is it open to the party presenting
a petition under section 12 (4) (e)
to withdraw it,

(b) is it open to the Minister to
withdraw a question from the
consideration of the Commission,

(e) is there any other process avail-
able by which the particular local
authorities concerned may achieve
their desire to readjust their
boundaries?
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Those were three fairly straightforward
questions and Mr. Smith applied himself
to the task by relating the background
of the matters which led up to the par-
ticular dispute and to the hearing of
the case by the Boundaries Commission.

Mr. Moller: What was the cost to the
ratepayers of the opinion of the Queen's
Counsel?

Mr. O'NEIL: I do not know,
Mr. Moiler: Possibly the ratepayers

would be interested.
Mr. O'NEfl.: I am not representing the

ratepayers of Northam. I am simply ask-
ing the House to express an opinion. I
did not ask for the opinion of the Queen's
Counsel and the question is completely
Irrelevant.

Mr. Moiler: I think it is relevant.
Mr. O'NEIL: Perhaps the honourablc

member should ask the local shire; or
Perhaps the local member could tell him.
However, that has nothing to do with
my argument.

One of the items on which the Queen's
Counsel had been asked to advise was as
follows,-

(a) it appears that the Minister has
been advised by officers of the
Local Government Department
that there Is no power to with-
draw a petition and that once
presented consideration of the
"question" thereby raised must
continue before the Commission.

That was the attitude at least up to the
stage of obtaining this Information and
Its further consideration by the Crown
Law Department-not the Minister's
officers. As I understand it, the officers
of the Crown Law Department were asked
to comment on the information.

Sticking closely to this matter for a
moment, let us now see what Mr. Smith
had to say in respect of the specific
questions he was asked. He gave another
opinion relative to the operations of the
Boundaries Commission and the area of
jurisdiction over which it had apparently
been operating in the past. He questioned,
in fact, whether it was operating within
its Jurisdiction. He did say that the point
was arguable so I will not argue it here.
However, he did make the Point and,
to be accurate, I must quote his opinion
as follows-

It would seem therefore that the
power of the Commission to hear or
to consider or to report on any matter
referred to it by the Minister arises
only when a petition is presented
under sub-sections (1) and (3) and
then only If-

(a) there is any question con-
cerning the constitution or
alteration of the constitution
of a municipality, or

(b) where one municipality seeks
severance of portion of the
district of another and the
annexation of that portion
the municipalities are unable
to agree as to the alterations
sought.

The implication here is that the only
time the Boundaries Commission needs
to consider the matter of a boundary
change between two local authorities is if
there is a dispute on the issue. If there
is agreement then the Minister may
recommend to the Governor-in-Council
that the boundary change be effected. In
such a case there is no argument so there
is no reason for the Boundaries Commis-
sion to consider the matter. No evidence
would be tendered to the commission on
which to make a determination.

The second part of my motion requests
that the matter of the amalgamation be
expedited, or considered by the Minister.
Relating this back to what should be
correctly before the commission, Mr.
Smith said-

If this view is correct then the Min-
ister was acting without power when
purporting to refer the alleged
question raised by the joint petition
to the Commission and the Commis-
sion has no Power to hear or to con-
sider or to report on the matters con-
tained in such petition.

It was perfectly clear that in the opinion
of Mr. Howard Smith the commission had
no power to hear the case. Prior to the
Minister receiving this information he had
Insisted that the petition be heard, and
that the hearing proceed. We asked a
number of questions and the Minister said
the hearing would proceed because he
would not allow the petition to be with-
drawn. However, he changed his mind and
that must have been as a result of this
opinion.

There is a recommendation that action
could be taken in the courts to have the
hearing stopped. The minister must have
been aware that that action would have
been successful because he changed his
round and instead of having the com-

mission called together to hear the Petition
of the Northam Shire Council he carried
out the hearing on a different premise
altogether.

The Minister does have the power to
refer to the Boundaries Commission any
matter he thinks fit. In fact, that is how
the hearing was commenced and not as a
result of the petition which had ceased to
exist anyway, because it was withdrawn.
The hearing was not as a result of the
request for a boundary alteration, because
the commission has no Power to hear a
case when there is no petition.

However, the hearing proceeded on the
basis that the matter had been referred
to the commission by the minister. So
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the Minister, having received better advice
than that tendered by his officers, had to
change the grounds on which the hearing
proceeded.

I do not know what the commission
actually did when it went to Northam
at 10.00 a.m. on the 20th March. If it
were necessary for the petition to be
moved by the petitioner, there would not
have been anybody to move it. If the
Boundaries Commission requested argu-
ment against the Petitioner, the Petitioner
would Oppose that argument because he
wanted to withdraw. The second party-
the other local authority-was on the
side of the first party so there was no
evidence to hear.

The members of the commission had a
trip to Northam and were there from
10.00 an. onwards with no case to con-
sider. They have since returned-I hope,
since it was the 20th March. It is not
likely that a recommendation will be made
until some months ahead. I believe the
whole exercise was completely abortive.

Mr. Taylor: Do you think the members
of the commission could have investigated
the original reasons for the petition, just
the same as would happen If a Police
officer was called to a home and then told
that he was no longer required? That
Police officer would convince himself that
there was reason for his presence in the
first place.

Mr. O'NEIL: The Point I made previously
Was that if the Minister for Labour and
I had a dispute, and I took him 'to court,
I would present my case and he would
Present his case. However, that would not
be likely to happen because I am such a
happy Person. It would more likely be
that we would come to an agreement and
what would be the point in going to court
with no dispute? The judge would prob-
ably throw us both out.

Mr. Taylor: If I had occasion to call in
the Police alleging that you had threatened
to murder me. and when the police arrived
I told them they were not required, there
could still be a case for the police to
inquire into.

Mr. O'NEIL: Perhaps I should not have
referred to what the Courts would do. In
a case before the Boundaries Commission,
the Situation could be that there is a
Petitioner and a respondent. If the peti-
tioner withdraws his Petition and cohabits
with the respondent, what has the com-
mission to decide on? Nothing at all. There
is no dispute. As I have mentioned-and
I think the member for Mt. Hawthorn
would agree-Mr. Howard Smith makes the
Point that there is no Petition because it
was withdrawn.

The Minister recognised that fact, and
the hearing did not proceed as a result
of the Petition. It Proceeded at the request
of the Minister because the Minister has
the Power to refer any matter to the
commission.

The legal opinion was found by officers
of the Crown Law Department to be
sound, and to be contrary to the opinions
given to the Minister by officers of the
Department of Local Government.

That is the technicality of the matter.
so why arbitrate in a dispute that does
not exist? It is a fact that the two local
authorities are now living happily side by
side. For how long I am not prepared to
guess, but they have agreed to solve their
problems through a mutual agreement on
the extent of financial assistance towards
the amenities which are provided in the
town and used by the people. The two
councils have mutually agreed upon the
boundary change which affects only them.

As Mr. Smith has stated quite clearly,
the Local Government Boundaries Com-
mission is not empowered to consider a
mutually-agreed-upon boundaries change.
The action simply is that the Minister
may, if he so desires, I presume, have the
Governor-in-Council accede to the appro-
priate boundary change. There would be
nothing before the commission and, in
fact, it has no power to hear any case.
So the whole thing was a complete and
utter farce. It was actually used in argu-
ment to indicate the extent to which the
policy of the present Government will go
towards forcing the amalgamation of
local authority boundaries.

I am asking the House to express an
opinion that, having agreed to what I
have said, we consider the hearing of the
Local Government Boundaries Commis-
sion should be discontinued, and that the
Minister get on with the job of giving
consideration to the mutually-requested
boundary change. It is as simple as
that. I think the Minister was badly
advised by his officers. I am certain that
has been Proved by the opinion of Mr.
Howard Smith, Q.C.

I ask the House to support the motion.

MlR.* McFYER (Northam) (8.02 p.m.]:
I rise to oppose the motion in its entirety.
In fairness to the Deputy Leader of the
Opposition, I must say that he has pre-
sented his case on the facts that have been
given to him, and his remarks were fair.
However, I wish to point out that in reality
the situation is not as he explained it.

I am surprised that the motion was
moved by the Deputy Leader of the Oppo-
sition. My information was that it would
be moved by the Leader of the opposition.

Mr. O'Neil: Does it make any difference?
Mr. McIVER: I am sorry the Leader of

the Opposition is not in his seat.
Mr. Gayfer: Nor is the Premier.
Mr. MeIVER: However, he will read in

Hansard what I have to say.
Mr. Rushton: What difference does it

make?
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Mr. McIVER: If the member for Dale will
be quiet, he will understand what I am
about to say.

Following the deputation from the Nor-
tham Town Council and the Shire of Nor-
thami, one particular councillor could not
keep his mouth shut on return to Northam
and he boasted around the town that the
Opposition intended to embarrass the Min-
ister for Local Government and the mem-
ber for the district and cause the latter to
cross the floor and vote with the Opposi-
tion.

Mr. Hartrey: That will be the day!
Mr. McIVER: It certainly will.
Mr. Rushton: You know the rules better

than that.
Mr. MeIVER: Before I did that, there

would certainly need to be stronger grounds
and a stronger issue than the motion
moved by the Deputy Leader of the Opposi-
tion.

Mr. O'Neil: I do not think I even men-
tioned your name other than In response
to a question.

Mr. McITVER: That is right. I said the
Deputy Leader of the Opposition was fair
in his remarks, but I think he should be
made aware of the facts so that the next
time this element of the council comes
running to his door he will consult the
member for the district who can perhaps
give him guidance.

Mr. Rushton: He Is not even representing
his own area,

Mr. MeIVER: The Northam Town
Council is in a deplorable situation, finan-
cially and In other ways, and I am
grateful to the Deputy Leader of the
Opposition for providing an opportunity for
me to state, on behalf of the people of
Northam. what hats been done by those
who are supposedly representing them.

Mr. Rushton: Did they not elect them?
Mr. Moiler: Give him a go.
Mr. Nalder: Why did you not state it at

a ratepayers' meeting?
Mr. McIVER: I am in the invidious posi-

tion-
Mr. Nalder: Do not bring politics into

local government.
Mr. MeIVER: -that, should I receive in

the future a request from the Northam
Town Council to approach a Minister of
the Crown in regard to a matter, I could
not put forward a case with sincerity be-
cause the council does not know what it
wants.

On Thursday, the 5th October, I led a
deputation to the Minister for Local Gov-
ernment. I respectfully ask members of
this Chamber to Put themselves in the
Minister's position. I led the deputation
at the request of the Northamn Town Coun-
cil with a view to expediting amalgamation
of the Northam Town Council and the

Shire of Northamn. I was told it was a mat-
ter of urgency, and the members of the
deputation pressed the Minister for expedi-
tion of the amalgamation.

I give full marks to the Minister for
Local Government for his co-operation
since he has been in that office. He has
fallen over backwards to assist the Nor-
tham Town Council and all other local
authorities In Western Australia. He re-
ceived the deputation at Parliament House
at 10.30 am. on Thursday, the 5th October,
in order that, because of the state of the
parties in this House, I would be able to
leave the deputation and go to the Chamber
in the event of a division. The Minister
did not have to agree to do that; he could
have received the deputation in his own
office.

My concluding remarks to the mayor,
the deputy mayor, the town clerk, the
assistant town clerk, and the other coun-
cillor who was present at the deputation.
were, "Is this what you want? Is this
your aim?" I further said, 'Following this
deputation you will be pressed and request-
ed to reverse your decision, and I want to
give the Minister an assurance here and
now that this is what you want. I want
to support you but I want you to assure
me that this is your decision. I do not
want another fiasco like the one concern-
Ing traffic. You wanted me to expedite
that matter. You told me it was a matter
of urgency to set machinery In motion in
regard to traffic."

What happened in relation to traffic?
After everything was set up for them, four
days later they had a special council meet-
ing in an endeavour to reverse their decis-
ion. I give full marks to the Mayor of
Northam because thanks to his casting vote
we now have police control of traffic and
the district has never been better catered
for. Having this in mind, I again asked
those who were present at the deputation
to the Minister for Local Government, "Is
this what you want?" They were unani-
mous in their decision. They said, "IMr.
Minister, this is what we want and nothing
will change our minds."

I ask members of the Chamber what
they would do if they received such a re-
quest from a deputation and, in a few days'
time, they received a further submission
from that body of people saying they had
changed their minds. I think we must
look at the facts and be fair.

Mr. Rush ton: What about the Shire of
Northam?

Mr. MeIVER: I will come to the Shire
of Northamn. I wish the Previous Govern-
ment had shown an interest in Northern.

Mr. Rushton: You should read some of
the history. I know something about that.

Mr. McIVER: I wish the previous Gov-
ernment had shown the interest in
Northam that it is now showing in this
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motion. My disappointment and disgust
'when I read the article by the Leader of
the Country Party can be appreciated.

Mr. Nalder: Do not drag that up again.
Mr. MoWVER: This whole motion reeks

-of nothing but politics.
Mr. Nalder: What are you doing now?
Mr. Graham: Giving the facts.
Several members interjected.
The SPEAKER: order!
Mr. MeIVER: I am giving the facts

to members of this House and stating
the position as it really is. If the subject
of the motion were such a large issue, I.
as the local member for the Town of Nor-
tham and the surrounding rural areas1
would expect to receive some correspon-
dence from someone. Surely someone must
be concerned. The Liberal Party was so
concerned that It Intended to persuade the
member for Northam to cross the floor.
Surely some constituents would write to
me, as the member for the district. ex-
pressing their views in relation to amal-
gamation, but I have not received onte
letter.

Mr. Graham: It is a Liberal Party plot.
Mr. McIVER: Not one letter have I

'received, from constituents in the town
or in the rural areas, seeking may assistance
In this matter. But I might say that fol-
lowing the deputation to the Minister for
Local Government, when he was requested
to expedite amalgamation, letters by the
dozen poured In, supporting amalgamation.
MePmbers should not run away with the
idea that the people In Northam are
against amalgamation.

Mr. Nalder: What about the shire? You
have not said much about that yet.

Mr. McIVER: Mr. Speaker, I under-
stand that under the Standing Orders I
have unlimited time In replying to a
motion. Is that so?

The SPEAKER: Yes.
Mr. McTVER: I will come to the shire

In due course. It seems from the Inter-
jections that what I am saying Is starting
to hurt, the barbs are pricking, and the
truth Is going home. I am relating the
facts. There Is an old Chinese proverb
that says the truth runs many races and
always wins first prize.
Sitting suspended from 6.15 to 7.30 pa.

Mr. McIVER: Prior to the tea suspen-
sion I was outlining in detail the relevant
facts in relation to the amalgamation of
the Northam Town Council -with the Nor-
tham Shire. I clearly indicated to the
Deputy Leader of the Opposition and to
other members Present the situation in
which the Minister was placed following
the deputation he received, which, inci-
dentally, was led by me and a representa-
tive from the Northam Town Council.

I think members must agree that follow-
ing this deputation and the letters re-
ceived from the people of the Northam dis-
trict the Minister had no alternative what-
ever but to do what he did--despite the
petition put to him by the Northam Town
Council and the Northam Shire.

The engagement of a Queen's Counsel-
lor to put further pressure on the Minister
in support of this amalgamation is, I feel.
irrelevant. it only amounted to legal jar-
gon. The Minister has his own officers In
the Department of Local Government who
advise him on matters such as these.

Accordingly, I repeat, that since the
Labor Party became the Government the
Minister has always been more than fair
with the Northam Town Council. Since
the Labor Party has been in Government
the Northam Town Council has had more
visits than ever before from Ministers of
the Crown-I would say It has had more
visits than any other town in Western
Australia and it has been treated very
f airly indeed.

Accordingly, that council cannot expect
any sympathy from me, particularly when
it employs this back-door method of run-
ning down here with Its complaints to
members of the Opposition. This is the
second occasion on which the council has
done this and I hope it will not do it again
in the future.

Mr. Rushton: Only because the Minister
would not receive them.

Mr. McIVER:. It grieves rme to have to
speak in this vein. I served on the Nor-
tham Town Council for five years and I
can assure the House that during that
period the mayor would not have allowed us
to run down to the then Labor Opposition
with any matter that happened to be con-
troversial.

Accordingly there is little doubt that this
motion was geared in the first place to
embarrass the Minister for local Govern-
ment. It was further expected that I would
be In the same boat: that I would be em-
barrassed and would cross the floor.

I reiterate that point because members
can see how ridiculous such a move would
have been. Over the years the Northamn
Town Council has been represented by very
fine men. Northam is a very fine town
and in It there are some very fine people.

Mr. O'Neil: Not as good as Colle!
Mr. McIVER: So we must put a stop

here and now to such activities: we must
prevent such a situation repeating Itself.
The town of Northam Is on the move.
Never before in Its history have we seen
such progress as has been made In the
past two years.

Mr. Hartrey: Hear, hear!
Mr. Rushton: That Is a misstatement.
Mr. McIVER: We must not in any way

deter the progress that Is being made in
Northam.
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Mr. Hartrey: Hear. hear!
Mr. McOWER: As the member for the

district I would like It placed on record
that I cannot allow a small body of coun-
cillors in any way to deter the rapid de-
velopment of Northam.

Government members: Hear, hear!
Mr. MeIVER: By Interjection the Leader

of the Country Party said, "What about
the shire?" To put the honourable mem-
ber at his ease-because I know he is get-
ting nervous at my not having mentioned
the shire-I will now come to this point.

Mr. Nalder: That will be the day. when
I am nervous.

Mr. MOWVER: It is understandable that
the members of the shire should panic. I
am sure that we in this House would also
panic if we inherited a deficit of some
$90,000. It is a tremendous sumn to have
thrown in one's lap. I will be precise about
the figure and say that the overdraft of
the Northam Town Council at the 30th
June was $99,309. It Is little wonder,
therefore, that the members of the shire
were at panic stations. Fancy their being
saddled with a deficit as large as that. Is
it any wonder that there was such strong
protest in relation to amalgamation?

Because of the financial situation and
other aspects I have already outlined in
this Chamber the Minister for Local Gov-
erment had no alternative but to hold a
meeting of the Boundaries Commission In
Northam. He had no alternative but to
go ahead and instruct the Boundaries
Commission to hold the meeting, because
he could not permit the Northam Town
Council to spend money in the manner it
was doing and thus Increase its deficit.

Let us be fair about all this. A local
authority cannot be permitted, without
some intervention, to spend thousands
of dollars of ratepayers' money on
projects to which I will refer in a minute.
I think the Minister for Local Government
is to be commended and congratulated on
the stand he took in this matter.

Mr. Nalder: What is your view? Are you
supporting the amalgamation?

Mr. McIVER: I will deal with that aspect
in my concluding remarks.

Mr. Nalder: Don't forget.
Mr. May: Do not be like the Leader of

the Opposition.
Mr. McIVER: In the main, of course,

the prime concern of the Northam Shire
Council and of the people of the rural area
is the possibility of increased rates. We
must be fair about this. The council's in-
terest lies in dollars and cents. The mem-
bers of the shire are not looking to the
further development of Northam or to any
further advantage that may accrue to that
town; they are looking at the question
wholly and solely from the point of view
of dollars and cents.

(301

Mr. Rushton: That is because they are
civic-minded.

Mr. MeIVER: I must say here that the
Boundaries Commission does not have
power to amalgamate local authorities: it
can only make a recommendation. As was
pointed out by the Deputy Leader of the
Opposition, in due course these recommen-
dations will come forward for considera-
tion by the Minister. The finances of the
Town of Northam, however, had to be
thoroughly investigated. The Minister has
clearly indicated this, and it is something
with which I wholeheartedly agree.

Mr. Runciman: But why by the Boun-
daries Commission?'

Mr. McIVER: The financial position of
the Northam Town Council will not be in-
vestigated by the Boundaries Commission:
this investigation will be carried out by
the auditors of the Local Government De-
partment. This is the Prime reason that
the Minister for Local Government had to
go ahead with the action he proposed to
take, despite the petition he received.

We now come to the legal aspect. Bly
telephone the Northam Town Clerk asked
me whether I would arrangtc a further
deputation with the Minister to enable the
council to withdraw Its original submission.
I do not want to traverse this ground.
however.

Along with my colleages I was in Gerald-
ton with the Minister for Local Govern-
ment. This is no secret, because Caucus
had a meeting in Geraldton.

Mr. Nalder: And you saw the farmers
carrying the wheat down the back tracks.

Mr. McIVER: No. I did not see any far-
mers going down the back tracks. I would
not know where they were going, but that
is irrelevant to Zhe matter before the Chair.
The Leader of the Country Party seems
to think this is a joke: that it is time to
be facetious. I can assure the honourable
member that the peonle of Northam whom
I represent in this Chamber do not con-
sider the matter as a joke.

Mr. Nalder: You are treating another
situation as a joke.

Mr. Graham: Hear, hear!
Mr. McIVER: I will not be sidetracked

by the Leader of the Country Party. He
wants to get into the action and he will
shortly get all the action he desires. -

Being the approachable man he is. I
approached the Minister while in Gerald-
ton and said to him, "Sir, would you meet
a deputation from the Northam Town
Council in relation to the withdrawal of a
Petition?"

The Minister then showed me a copy of
The West Australian newspaper which
Stated in bold headlines that the Northam
Town Council was coming to Perth to inter-
view the Leader Of the Opposition to Protest
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about the Boundaries Commission meeting
that was to be held In Northam. X again 9A
members how they would feel if they were
placed in the position which faced the
Minister for Local Government who was
not given an opportunity to answer the
Northam Town Council and was con-
fronted with the headlines to which I have
referred.

Had I been the Minister f or Local Gov-
ernment I would have acted in exactly the
same way as did the Minister; It isa Pos-
sible. however, r would not have been
quite so generous as he was.

Mr. Rushton: Are you sure you are ac-
curate?

Mr. McIVER: I resent that remark. I
have been in this Parliament for many
years and during that time I have never
misled the House. Accordingly I very much
resent the remark made by the member
for Dale. I do not rise to my feet merely
for the sake of talking. I am very con-
scious that the dignity of the House should
be maintained and, as I have said, I very
much resent the remnark made by the
member for Dale.

Mr. Graham: Hear, hear!
Mr. McIVER: The situation is that the

Northam Town Council was not interested
in a reply from the Minister. A small ele-
ment of the council had already made up
its mind to come down to Perth and squeal
to the Leader of the Opposition. Knowing
the men who have, with honour, repre-
sented the Northam Town Council In the
past, I am disgusted, as the member for
the district, to have to stand in this Par-
liament and refer to this element of the
council which is not worth a spit. I am
shocked to think that matters should have
come to this.

I certainly trust that the politics of the
council will not bias its views in the de-
cisions it must make In the future as the
local authority for the district, because
should the members of the council make
the wrong decision, it will result in the
town of Northam being retarded. I am
determined that the members of the coun-
cil will not arrest the progress that has
been made by the town of North'am.

For the benefit of the Leader of the
Country Party I repeat that because the
Northam Shire has offered some land and
$1,400 a year this Is no Proof that the
people of the shire will be affected, This
is an important factor which has been
overlooked by the people in the rural area.
In all the years I have been a member
of this Parliament, I can say with al
sincerity theat I have received nothing but
courtesy and co-operation from the
Northam Shire Council. It would be the
height of hypocrisy to say otherwise.

Mr. Mensaros: You said you would tell
us whether you were for or against,

Mr. MoIVER: If the honourable mem-
ber will have aL little Patience I will answer
his interjection. If an amalgamation did
take Place-and I repeat the word "if".-
there is nothing to say that the rates of
the Northam Shire will not be Increased,
because it is obliged to find $14,000 a year
to meet its requirements. Perhaps the ex-
pansion of industry in North am will solve
all the shire's problems. Nevertheless one
cannot overlook the reference to this de-
ficit of $390,000.

Mr. O'Neil: Is it $393,000, or $99,000?
Mr. Gayfer: It is $99,300.
Mr. McIVER: I am sorry; the figure is

$99,309. Let me mention one decision made
by the council. It decided to build a town
library and its decision was approved by
the ratepayers of Northam. A public
library is a worthy amenity in any town,
but the people of Northam did not want
a Taj Mahal. They wanted a public library
as a place where they could read books
of their choice and, as there Is a five-year
senior high school in the town, to enable
the students of that school to use the lib-
rary as it should be used. No penaty clause
was Included in the building contract; it
was an open cheque. The library was in-
complete, and as a consequence for several
months after his appointment the librar-
ian did not have to do a hand's turn, be-
cause he did not have a library in which
to work.

Every fortnight after he was appointed
he drew $234.21 for doing nothing.

Mr. Jones: For how long did this go on?
Mr. MOYVER: Several months. What a

shocking decision! The council put Its
money into bricks and mortar but it cer-
tainly Is not positive In making Its de-
cision. It could have had an administra-
tive building as well as a public library
which the people of Northam badly need-
ed. I am ashamed to say-but it is the
truth-that the Northamn Town Council
ha L the most shocking administrative
building in Western Australia. It was erect-
ed In the 1930s and why it has not fallen
down is beyond me. The council staff have
to work in extremely bad conditions and
all members here know what the temper-
ature is like in Northam during the sum-
mer months. Yet these are the people who
ran to the Leader of the Opposition to
squeal about the Minister for Local Goy-
ermnent.

I ask your permission, Mr. Speaker, to
quote briefly some of the remarks that
were made by the librarian following his
frustration because he could not get any
action. He wrote to the local newspaper,
and In the Northarn Advertiser of the Mt
May last. the following appeared-

IS IT A JOKE?
In his latest report to the Northam

Town Council, the town librarian, Mr.
0. V. Hubble, said he could tolerate
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running the library on a skeleton
staff because he liked to see council
getting value for money, but when the
library must be starved for funds for
some very basic services, then the
whole idea of the library service be-
comes a joke.

Although realising that council has
financial commitments for the rest of
the financial year, Mr. Hubble stated
"Unless there is a reasonable improve-
menit In library fund allocations next
financial year, there would be no
point In my remaining with what
would inevitably became a third rate
library service."

I trust that, for a town the size of North-
am, this will not come to pass.

It is not my intention to grind the
Northam Town Council into the dust, but
there comes a time in one's ife when some-
thing must be said for the benefit of the
majority of the people so that they may
become acquainted with the true state of
affairs, and so that the council itself can
take some notice of what Is said. I there-
fore hope the council will make some ad-
justmnents accordingly to work as a team
and with a common aim for the benefit of
all the residents in the town of Northam,
and keep Its polities for the polling booths
on polling day.

This brings me to the point raised by
the Leader of the Country Party. I see
from an article in The West Australian
that he accused the Minister for Local
Government of being arrogant and of act-
ing without responsibility. He said this ac-
tion was one of the most arrogant acts
he had seen. I am sure that from the
facts I have put before the House it will
be seen that person was wrong in saying
what he did. I only hope that If he wishes
to write about the Northern Town Coun-
ciliIn the future he will have the courtesy
to approach me to supply him with the
facts. If he does I shall be obliged to do
so.

Mr. Nalder: I will be approaching you
on one or two matters.

Mr. Graham: That will be necessary.

Mr. McIVER: I1 am always available,
and my door is always open. There Is no
need for me to dwell on this issue. I can
assure members that the Deputy Leader
of the Opposition moved the motion in
good faith, but had he known the full
facts of the situation he would not have
proceeded with the motion. I sincerely
hope that he was not a party which sought
to embarrass the member for Northam by
trying to force him to cross the floor of
the House to vote. The issue will have to
be a far greater one than this to impel
me to cross the floor and vote with the
Opposition.

In view of what I have revealed to the
House it would be farcical to proceed with
the motion any further. It would there-
fore be of benefit to all concerned If the
Deputy Leader of the Opposition withdrew
the motion.

Debate adjourned, on motion by Mr.
Taylor (Minister for Labour).

PRIMARY INDUSTRIES
Effect o! Currencv Revaluation: Motion

MR. GAYFEK (Avon) [7.55 p.m.]: 1
move-

That this Assembly endorses the
Premier's concern and actions over the
recent Australian dollar revaluation
especially as it affects the7 primary
industries and particularly the grain
industry of Western Australia: and
this House censures the Prime Minister
and the Commonwealth Government
over their decision and failure to pro-
tect the financial interests of the
primary producer: and that this As-
sembly further calls upon the Com-
monwealth Gjovernment to take steps
immediately to compensate adequately
all primary producers for the losses
suffered.

I make no apology for bringing the motion
before the House: on the contrary I comn-
mend it in the spirit In which I have
framed it. It is moved not only to high-
light the serious financial position cur
primary producers, and to a degree our
secondary industries, will face because of
the recent currency alignment, but also
to bring to the notice of the central Gov-
ernment the effect this will have on the
economy of Australia in general, and
Western Australia in particular-points
which I feel sure have been missed by the
central Government when making these
two alarming and shattering decisions.

The first was on the 23rd December,
1972, when revaluation of the Australian
dollar caused It to move 7.05 per cent. up-
wards: and the latter on the 13th Febru-
ary, 1973, when the Commonwealth held
firm while the United States dollar moved
downwards, thus causing an effectual re-
valuation of the Australian dollar relative
to the US. dollar of 11.1 per cent., especi-
ally as far as our prewrltten primary
products contracts In U.S. dollars are con-
cerned.

It Is a drastic Move, when coupled with
the previous Government's revaluation of
6.32 per cent. on the 22nd December, 1g71.

Mr. T. D. Evans: On that occasionl I
did not hear any complaints from the
present Opposition.

Mr. GAYFER: The Minister will have a
chance to participate In the debate on this
motion, and finally I will have the chance
to reply. This Is a total of 24.45 per cent.
Australian to U.S. dollar revaluation in a
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12-months' period; and in the last three
months a revaluation of 18.16 per cent.
effectively. This means that for the Aus-
tralian exporter the overseas buyer in U.S.
dollars has to find 25 per cent, more money
to pay the same Australian dollar value
for goods, thus creating a buyer resistance;
or alternatively if the buyer has a contract
written prior to disaster-day, or fl-day,
as I have heard it referred to, he will be
paying in U.S. dollars back into Australia
the equivalent of one Australian dollar less
in every four.

What has brought this position about?
Australia, as well as the other countries
of the world, works on a system of income
earned overseas as against income spent
overseas. Prior to December, 1972, it was
believed byr some of the economic advisers
that the current account gap--thatIs, the
gap between export and import margins,
or the current gap situation-together
with the capital Inflow Into Australia
placed the Australian economy in a pre-
carious position relative to the rest of the
world.

This, together with the belief that there
was an increase of so-called hot money,
or that money floating from country to
country through the manipulations of in-
ternational speculators, coming into Aus-
tralia caused the central Government to
reach Its decision and conclusion to revalue
the Australian dollar by 7.05 per cent.
upwards.

Mr. H. Di. Evans: What is the reference
to the central Government?

Mr. Graham: You mean the Australian
Government.

Mr. c3AYFER: I am referring to the
Commonwealth Government. Members can
call it what they will. At the time the
Federal Government revalued the dollar
upwards by 7.05 per cent. it Introduced a
proviso that overseas investment money
or capital Inflow would not be allowed into
Australia unless a sum equal to 25 per
cent, was deposited, interest free, with the
Reserve Bank, thus automatically increas-
ing by 25 per cent. the interest rate as well.

Mr. H. D3. Evans: Will you explain the
impact of foreign capital on the Australian
economy?

Mr. GAYFER: I am trying to get down
to the basics and I can tell the Minister it
takes a fair amount of sorting cut. Bo
far I have been very fair on both
sides of the ledger and I have criticised
no-one to this stage.

Mr. H, D,. Evans: I am listening avidly.
Mr. GAYFER: I am referring to the

basics which caused concern and the
remedial action taken. It is the remedial
action which has had the major drastic
effect and impact on our primary indus-
tries. No cognisance whatever was taken of
many other policies which could have been

implemented with the same end result, but
which, at the same time, would have pro-
tected our primary industries'. and I will
deal with them in a moment.

So much for the reasons which prompted
me to present the motion to the House.
As the State and the Commonwealth rely
so much on primary industries, alternative
measures could and should have been taken
before our great primary Industries were
left virtually to carry the baby. My mo-
tion contains three parts, the first read-
Ing-

That this Assembly endorses the
Premier's concern and actions over
the recent Australian dollar revalua-
tion especially as It affects the pri-
mary industries and Particularly the
grain industry of Western Australia:

The alarm expressed by our Premier soon
after the 23rd December is well known
and I can draw the attention of the House
to many articles which were written fol-
lowing Press Interviews with the Premier
at that time. On the 24th December-
that is, the day after the announcement-
The Sunday Times carried the headline,
"A hard knock for WA, says Premier".
The article quoted certain remarks which
must be attributed to the Premier because
virtually the same article appeared in the
Sunday Independent. The article in The
Sunday Times reads-

Western Australia will be the hard-
est-hit State as a result of the revalu-
ation says the Premier and Treasurer,
Mr. Tonkin.

He had requested the former Prime
Minister, Mr. McMahon not to revalue,
Mr. Tonkin said.

Now Mr. Whitlarn has announced
the revaluation it was "too late" to
make a similar pleaL to the new Feder-
al Government...

He said the revaluation would mean
lower returns for WA producers of iron
ore, nickel and other minerals, farm
products and the fishing industry.

iron ore and nickel producers were
paid for their ores in US dollars...

Mr. Tonkin said the fishing Industry
would be similarly affected. WA fish-
eries exports made up 30 per cent. of
the total value of Australia's fish ex-
ports.

Most WA fishing exporters were also
paid in US dollars and would In future
receive a lower return in exchange.,.

While it would be very adverse in
WA because of primary industries with
a heavy emphasis on exports, other
States could benefit.

Remember those words; that is, "other
States could benefit".

The SPEAKER: There is too much talk-
ing in the Chamber.
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Mr. GAYPER: I quite agree. The Prem-
Jar is reported in the Sunday Independent
of the 24th December as folaows--

Mr. Tonkin said: "The decision
means a substantial Impost upon pri-
mary Producing industries, and our
economy in WA Is so largely depen-
dent on primary production, not
only from wool and wheat, but from
minerals and fishing.

"I'm concerned that the Prime Min-
ister didn't give me the opportunity of
prior discussion before the decision
was made.

'There is no doubt the Premier was most
concerned. The Leader of the Opposition
also had something to say on the subject,
and the following is found in The Sunday
Times of the 24th December-

Mr. T. D. Evans: He often has a lot to
say.

Mr. GAYFER: Fair enough, but I think
he is entitled to speak on a matter as Ima-portent as this one. He was sharing the
Premier's thoughts on the matter and
therefore they are no doubt the Min-
ister's thoughts. Portion of the article
under the heading, "Obsession", reads--

The Leader of the W.A. Opposition,
Sir Charles Court, said Mr. Whitlam's
revaluation of the Australian dollar
was his biggest indiscretion since he
took office.

Sir Charles said:. "I thought It was
a dead issue following the rebuff he
received from his own supporters, pri-
mary producing end manufacturing
interests, when he suggested revalue-
tion while in Opposition.

"It must be an obsession with him,
or he Is ignoring widespread practical
opinion."

Sir Charles said the decision would
not solve the problem it sought to
remedy.

At the same time all the support in
Australia is available. Sir Charles Cutler
in New South Wales,-

Mr. Hartrey: What would he know about
it?

Mr. GAYFER: As he Is the Deputy
Premier of that State and the Leader of
the Country Party there he would have
somne knowledge of the effect of revalua-
tion, even If the member for Boulder-Dun-
das is not concerned about the effect on
the mining industry.

Mr. Graham: The economy is booming.
Unemployment is decreasing.

Mr. GAYFER: I will refer to that when
I deal with Pacininex and others later. Sir
Charles Cutler said-

... the New South Wales Govern-
ment was ready to co-operate in every
way to assist those affected.

"Mr. Whitlam's decision to revalue
the Australian dollar could not have
come at a worse time for primary pro-
ducers.

"The wheat season just ended pro-
duced only half the expected crop.

The Land, a New South Wales publication,
reports as follows-

Few primary industries are in any
position to face the loss in hard cash
that the upward movement in the dol-
lar will impose on all1 exporters.

Mr. Hartrey: You are not talking about
the export of gold.

Mr. GAYFER: Yes; alarm is even ex-
pressed-

Mr. Hartrey: The price of gold has gone
UP.

Mr. GAYFER: Flair enough, but the
nmember for Boulder-Dundas 'will have an
opportunity to speak later and to beck
up his thoughts.

It is fair to note that the remarks of
the Leader of the Opposition were still
true even on the 20th March, 1973, when
he said, as reported on page 49 of Hansard
No. 2-

Even the Premier had to point out
to the Commonwealth Government the
dangers associated with revaluing the
Australian dollar, and at the time I
supported him entirely.

Flurmher on the Leader of the Opposition
said-

We agree entirely with the repre-
sentations the Premier has made to
the Federal Government. I do not
know whether he has had any re-
sponse to his further pleading with the
Prime Minister to give him an answer
to his question. The Federal Govern-
ment will defend its decision and put
forward various reasons for making it

Some projects that were marginal
have become unprofitable, some that
were profitable have become marginal.

So It can be seen that the Leader of the
Opposition supported the Premier's pro-
test to the Prime Minister. Several other
high-ranking officials of the Labor Party
also lodged Protests, but none of them
was heeded. I am convinced we are doing
the correct thing in giving our Premier
the support he needs in his representations
on behalf of the Primary industries of
Western Australia.

This, in fact, is what the first part of
my motion seeks to do. We want to give
the Premier full endorsement and let him
know we support him In the moves he has
so far taken. Indeed, in the latter part
of this section of my motion I have re-
ferred particularly to the grain industry of
Western Australia. Without going into in-
volved figures at this stage-dealing especi-
ally with the wheat industry-I would
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point out that members may not be aware
that as a result of the currency realign-
ment and revaluation, and because of con-
tracts written in U.S. dollars, the loss to
the wheatgrowers of this State will be in
the vicinity of $7,600,000. However, I will
again deal more fully with that point a
little later.

My motion goes on-
..and this House censures the

Prime Minister and the Commonwealth
Government over their decision and
failure to protect the financial inter-
ests of the primary producer:

I submit that the decision taken by Mr.
Whitlam and Mr. Barnard on the 23rd
December was taken at the behest of
centralised bureaucrats without any due
consideration of what it would mean to
Australia's primary Industries, and to our
State in particular. At this stage we have
to remember that 80 per cent. of Aus-
tralia's export earnings from overseas
comes from the primary industries. It is
also as well to note that 52 per cent. of
those earnings comes from rural industries
and here I am referring to the time prior
to the lift in the price of wool.

It is also interesting to note that 80 per
cent, of Western Australia's overseas ex-
port earnings comes from primary indus-
tries. According to the inquiries I have
made, the figure of 80 per cent. relates to
Australia and Western Australia on the
same basis. The realisation of what consti-
tutes the primary industries has a vast
impact on the people.

Mr. Graham: You are going to tell us
what constitutes the Primary industries? I
am wondering what they embrace.

Mr. GAYFER: I am not hedging around:
I am trying to get my story into some
sequence so that laymen, like myself, will
understand what I am saying. I have
tried to be very simple and concise so that
at least the Deputy Premier-in the
absence of the Premier-will understand
what I am saying.

Mr. Graham: I was wondering if the
term embraced any primary production.

Mr. GAYPER: The two-man Govern-
ment-consisting of Mr. Whitlam and Mr.
Barnard; and we must remember that It
was a two-man Government at that stage
-made a decision on the 23rd November.
I doubt whether the then proposed Federal
Treasurer (Mr. Crean) knew anything
about the decision, although according to
some newspaper reports there is some
element of doubt about that. However, a
decision was made and out of the blue
came a scheme which alarmed all Cabinet
Ministers.

The utterances of the Premier of this
State were backed up by Dr. Cairns, the
Minister for Overseas Trade and Minister
for Secondary Industry: Senator Wrledt.
Minister for Primary Industry: Dr. Patter-

son, Minister for Northern Development.
and Mr. Connor. One would not have to
search very far into the archives of the
newspaper offices throughout Australia to
locate reports of the utterances made by
those worthy gentlemen. I will deal with
a few of the articles a little later.

The decision was made in spite of the
November 1972 report of the Organis-
ation for Economic Co-operation and
Development. For the information of
members, O.E.C.D. is a world-wide organ-
isation of which Australia is a member.
The organisation Provides guidelines show-
ing how the economies of the various
member countries fit in with the general
economies of other countries throughout
the world. This is the best method of com-
paring the economic situation of any
nation.

The organisation Is considered to be so
important that the Federal Treasurer will
leave next week to attend one of its con-
ferences. I think the conference will be
held in Brussels and, as I have said, the
Treasurer will attend next week.

I would like to refer to the recommenda-
tions of the O.E.C.D.. and quote from a
summary which appears in The National
Economic & Legislative Report, No. 7, of
the 20th February. This report is readily
available in the University Library. if any
member would care to look at It.

The summary states,-
This report was written last Novem-

ber before the first revaluation of 7.05
per cent. was made

It states that the introduction of measures
to stimulate the economy and the Decem-
ber revaluation of the Australian dollar
was premature. It goes on-

Written as it was, a few weeks before
Australia's December 1972 unilateral
revaluation, the report presents a very
topical view when it suggests there
may have been better methods of deal-
ing with Australia's fundamental
balance-of -payments dlsequilibrium.

For a start, it suggested a country
In as strong a balance of payments
position as Australia might well con-
sider being more liberal In Its treat-
ment of overseas lending and Invest-
ment by its own residents.

"More important, after a century of
Industrial development. Australian
manufacturing industry in general can
hardly claim to be in continuing need
of the relatively high level of protec-
tion provided by a complex and in
some respects obsolete structure of
tariffs." the report said.

"From the point of view of promot-
ing a more efficient allocation of
Australian economic resources, an
adjustment in the balance of payments
on the import side might, ideally, be
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preferable to one which, like revalua-
tion, would hamper the further ex-
pansion of exports of manufactures
and discourage investment in rural
and mineral development."

The report was compiled by a world-wide
organisation of which Australia is a mem-
ber. It is a report on which a great deal
of value is placed. It Is bolstered, to a de-
gree, by the content of the article in The
National Economic & Legislative Report.
The current situation was criticised
strongly by the Minister for Overseas
Trade and Secondary Industry (Dr'.
Cairns), because the decision to revalue was
made without consultation with the
Cabinet. He made it quite clear that he
did not agree with the decision.

However, worse was to follow. In Feb-
ruary Mr. Whitlam and Mr. Crean-again
without consulting the Cabinet-decided
not to devalue the Australian dollar by at
least 7.05 per cent, in line with the U.S.
dollar. This decision was made for the
second time in two months without any
consultation with Cabinet Ministers.

The Liberal Party spokesman on primary
industry, Mr. Malcolm Fraser, had the fol-
lowing to say-

The decision Is remarkable because
it is the second time that expert ad-
vice from the Department of Primary
Tndustry and the Department of Trade
has been ignored.

Dr. Cairns, the Minister for Trade
and Senator Wriedt, the Minister for
Primary Industry, were not consulted.
That Is not Cabinet Government. It
Is government by Junto, refusing to
consider the implications for Important
sections of Australia.

Mr. Hartrey: The Australian dollar has
always been determined by the Common-
wealth Government.

Mr. GAYFER: This view has again been
supported by Dr. Cairns. Once again, I will
quote from the National Economic & Leg-
islative Report but many other newspapers
would also substantiate this statement. Dr.
Cairns said-

...it had always been traditional
for Treasury to make decisions about
currency values but he believed this
was wrong. The modem world was not
like the 19th century when this prac-
tice was established.

Trade qnd Industry worked in the
real world . . . these departments
were more .losely in touch vith it than
any other department.

He suggested the change in Austra-
lia's currency relationships could be
appreciated If it was thought of in
terms of a 14 or 15% reduction in
tariffs.

If this were proposed, industry and
the unions would be out on the streets
demonstrating.

There is complete and utter discord on this
issue amongst members of the Fedora!
Cabinet.

At this stage I submit two points. Firstly,
the revaluation of the 23rd December,
1972, was a hasty decision in the light of
the knowledge of the weakening of the
U.S. dollar in the near future. Secondly,
having made that premature decision-
when, in fact, the U.S. dollar was devalued
in December, 1972-on the 13th February,
1973. the Australian dollar should have
followed It down by at least '7.05 per cent.
to counteract the previous decision.

I also submit that none of this would
have been necessary had the steps been
taken which were recommended by Dr.
Cairns, the O.E.C.D.-whlch I have since
quoted-and other authorities which were
equally adamant in respect of the continu-
ation of present policies, with minor ad-
justments, instead of the drastic decision
which left the primary Industries carrying
the burden.

I say that the tightening up of capital
inflow by 25 per cent. could have been nec-
essary at that stage. I also say that Austra-
lia should have eased tariff policies to In-
crease imports. Dr. Cairns estimated that
this should have been in the vicinity of 14
to 15 per cent. He is quoting from the
O.E.C.D. report in which he evidently
places a great deal of faith.

Mr. flartrey: Evidently the Prime Min-
ister does not: that Is the difference.

Mr. GAYFER: There should have been
Permitted increased lending by Australians
and by the Australian Government to un-
der developed countries overseas. Finally,
the Commonwealth Government should
have made loans available to overseas
countries at low interest rates to enable
them to set up plants and, consequently, to
enable us to put our raw primary products
to full use.

If all of this had been done to alleviate
the position, the drastic step would not
have occurred. Coupled with these points, It
Is absolutely necessary that the Australian
dollar should become an internationally
recognised currency. In future, contracts
written in Australian dollars must be
acceptable.

Mr. Hartrey: When the value Is high
they will be recognised!

Mr. GAYFER: I suggest the member for
Boulder-Dundas should talk to the econo-
mists on this point as I have done for the
last four weeks. He will find that state-
ment is not completely correct.

Mr. Hartrey: The higher the value of
the currency, the worse it is?

Mr. GAYPER: That does not make any
difference to the recognition of the Aus-
tralian dollar as an international cur-
rency; otherwise it would have been recog-
nised years ago, If this fluctuation meant
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anything, the yen, the deutschemark. and
the euro dollar would likewise be unstable
because they have shifted. In fact, over-
seas contracts are still being written in
sterling despite its movement two years
ago.

Mr. Hartrey: You are not saying that
people place value In a currency when it
is worth less than their own?

Mr. GAY-PER: I am saying that, In
1969, 1970, and 1911 overseas countries
were Interested in writing contracts for
Australian exports primarily in sterling
and subsequently in U.S. dollars when
sterling started to shift. If the honour-
able member cares to talk to exporters
in any of the fields of mining or agri-
culture he will find that this is the posi-
tion. Overseas countries were not inter-
ested in writing contracts in Australian
dollars.

Mr. Hartrey: Are you suggesting there
is more confidence in U.S. currency today
when It has been devalued twice in the
last six months?

Mr. GAYFER: I am not talking about
now, but about 1969. 1970, and 1971, when
contracts for Australian produce were
written in sterling and U.S. dollars. At
that time there was not enough confidence
in the Australian dollar to write contracts
in It.

Mr. Hartrey: Since the revaluation
there is enough confidence.

Mr. GAYFER: I am not talking about
this but about the loss to the primary
industry caused by revaluation. This is
the argument, but perhaps I should ad-
dress the Chair.

The SPEAKER: I think that would be
advisable.

Mr. GAYFER: None of this was done.
Instead, the method used could have been
likened to a big stick to belt primary
Producers. This is all it did. It caused
them to lose millions and millions of
dollars. I shall shortly quote the comments
made by our own Premier which will sub-
stantiate this statement.

Mr. Graham: The economy is on the
up and up.

Mr. GAYFER: I would now like to dis-
cuss the effect on the rural industries.
I refer to an article in the Sunday In-
dependent on the 24th December. 1972.
This was before the second currency re-
alignment and just after the 7.05 per
cent, revaluation of the 23rd December,
1972.

Mr. May: That is mining, not rural.
Mr. GAYFER: My motion is concerned

with Primary industries. I suggest the
Minister for Mines should read the
motion. The article states-

Mr. Russell Madigan. managing
director of Ramersicy Iron. said In
Melbourne yesterday: "I cannot speak

for the company, but I am on public
record as being opposed to upward
re-valuation.

"I am disappointed. I believe that
in the interests of Australia, the
dollar should have been left where it
was..

This statement was made on the Sunday
following the announcement made on the
previous day. It was made before Mr.
Madigan had time to see the picture
clearly and assess the effects. The situa-
tion on the 24th December was impossible,
because It was Christmas Eve. Rather like
the two measures we discussed last night,
there was a degree of political finesse.
The article continues--

Mr. Lang Hancock. Partner in
mineral developers Hancock and
Wright, said he believed the Prine
Minister had been subjected to some
very bad advice.

"After all, Australia is a primary
producing country," he said. "It Is a
big mineral exporter. The iron ore
contracts are all written in U.S.
dollars..

I emphasise to the member for Boulder-
Dundas that the iron ore contracts were
all written in U.S. dollars. It is not a
question of what may happen in futurej
The article continues-

Sir Basil Embry, general president
of the Farmers' Union, said the re-
valuation decision was disastrous for
rural industry, which was dependent
on overseas markets.

'About 50 per cent of our overseas
earnings are from rural industry,"
he said. "Farmers will be getting five
per cent, less for their produce."

Later on the article states-
Mr. M. 0. Kailis said yesterday the

move would mean less money in the
industry.

"I'm shocked by the decision." he
said. "I only hope he knows what
he's doing."

I could continue to quote the opinions of
many people who spoke on this matter.

Mr. Graham: Why is the economy
healthier today than it was six months
ago, with less unemployment than we had
six months ago? You are weeping and
wailing over there but the facts are against
you, You are only giving opinions.

Mr. GAYFER: I now quote from the
Sunday Independent of the 11th March.
which contained an article headed. "Re-
valuation-what the disaster will cost
W.A." The article appeared in the trade.
finance, and economy page, and contained
the following statement-

They show that the estimated loss
on most types of exported ore before
revaluation totals in the next 20 years
$713.2 million with the Japanese cut-
backs restored (which they will be).
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The financial editor goes on to say-
The peak years of export remaining

are 1973 to 1979..
The article is accompanied by a chart
showing what the exports will be during
those Years, reaching an all-time high of
63,300,000 dry tons in 1975. It is stated
that when the figures are applied to
this period the relevant loss becomes
$466,900,000 for the next seven years. The
Deputy Premier says things have never
looked better.

Mr. Hartrey: Nor have they.
Mr. GAITER: In the Sunday Inde-

pendent of the 28th January Mr. Lang
Hancock published an article in which he
said-

We have suffered two revaluations in
quick succession, the effect of which
has been to slash $1.20 off the price
of our iron ore-a product worth no
more than $8 a ton. .. That is $1.20
off the price of our iron ore and $1.20
added to the price of their iron ore-

He is speaking there of Brazil. He con-
tinues-

-making a difference of $2.40 in
Brazil's f avour.

In other words, this represents
something like the entire profit margin
of Hamersley Iron, or Goldsworthy, or
Mt. Newman.

Mr. Graham: And all the iron ore com-
panies are expanding their production.
How do you explain that?

Mr. GAITER: I am not going to bother
to answer because someone is out of line
--either the Deputy Premier or the Pre-
mier. I am not sure. I have quoted what
the Premier had to say, and I will quote
more of what he had to say. Either he is
out of lie or the Deputy Premier is the
know-all of the Cabinet.

Mr. Graham: Your statements are
wrong,

Mr. GAYFER: I have quoted his state-
nienta.

Mr. Graham: Every time you are
queried you do not have the answer.

Mr. GAITER: I have the answer. I
have just quoted it.

M4r. Graham: You are reading peoiple's
opinions, that is all

Mr. W. G. Young: He is reading the
Premier's opinions-

Mr. Graham:* The facts are against
you.

Mr. GAYTER: What about the O.E.C.D.
report? Does the Deputy Premier say that
is not factual and that we are wasting
o-ur money?

mr. Graham: Do you know what were
the reports of the Reserve Bank and the
Trea Lry?

Mr. GAYPER: I have the Bank of New
South Wales report. We will take the lot,
if the Deputy Premier likes. I quote an
article from the Daft News of the 2nd
March. 1973, again by Mr. Hancock. He
said-

What, then, has been the cost to
Western Australia to date of these
Canberra capers?

They have put the kiss of death on
the much publicised "Jumbo" steel
nill project-

Mr. Graham: Oh no, they have not.
Mr. QAYFER: The article continues-

-a $1,500 million investment. They
have rendered uneconomic half a
dozen potential mines of enormous
capacity in the Pilbara iron field and
sealed the fate of the $250 million
Pacminex alumina refinery.

xM7r. Hartrey: Do you not think Hancock
is making these statements as an inter-
ested party?

Mr. GAYF'ER: Of course he is, but, being
interested, I think he knows what he is
talking about. I honestly believe that it a
man has an Interest-as I have In farming
-he will be able to say what is happen-
ing in the industry he represents. So I
make no apologies for quoting Lang Han-
cock. I would say he is about the biggest
individual in iron ore in Australia. and
possibly in the world. As a matter of fact,
I think he might know a little more about
it than does the member for Boulder-Dun-
das. I am not sure, but he might.

Mr. Graham: Understandably, he wants
an extra piece of' cake. It is as simple as
that.

Mr. GAYFER: In the Issue of the 29th
December, The Ausfralian Finandial Review
had this to say-

The most that can be said, at the
current state of knowledge, is the dir-
ection in which the effects will be felt.

There is. in other words, an em-
pirical vacuum.

I looked up the word "empirlcal" -lt
rather intrigued me.

Mr. Hartrey: "Empirical vacuum" is al-
most an incomprehensible expression.

Mr. O'Neil: That is helpful.
Mr. May: You had better clarify that.
Mr. QAYFER: That is the legal opinion.

I now quote from the Oxford dictionary,
which states-

Based, acting on observation and ex-
periment, not on theory; quack.

The article goes on to say-
The inability of the Government to

be precise about the effects of revalu -
ation on import prices, export In-
comes, business investment, or cap-
ital Inflow Is open ground for critics
to suggest that It does not know what
it is doing.
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Mr. Hartrey: Will the honourable mem-
ber now tell me what a vacuum is?

Mr. GAYFER: In The Farmer and
Grazier on the 25th January. Mr. Anthony
had this to say-

The Country Party cannot accept
the principle that exporters should
carry the cost of obtaining what could
well prove to be illusory benefits for
the rest of the community.

I repeat that they Could well be "illusory
benefits".

I have an interesting article which has
hardly anything to do with the question
but I hope I will be allowed to say that the
following appeared in the Canberra com-
ment in the Weslarriers News on the 22nd
March-

The Government Whip. Mr. Bren-
dan Hansen, from the Queensland
sugar seat of Wide Bay. moved an
amendment against the interest rate
rise.

The rise in the interest rate to be paid on
rural reconstruction funds had been fore-
shadowed by the Minister for Primary In-
dustry (Senator Wreidt). A long debate
followed and the case for the Government
scheme was argued by the Government
"heavies"; that is, Mr. Crean, Senator
Wreidt. and the Minister f or Social Secur-
ity (Mr. Hayden). But so alarmed were the
back-benchers of the Labor Party that
wihen the numbers went up the vote was
only 45 to 40 In favour, and there was gen-
eral surprise that the pro-farmer lobby
had done so well in the Labor Party. I
mention this as one instance to show that
many labor People are not very happy
about the plight In which the primary In-
dustries are finding themselves.

Mr. Hartrey: It also shows that a lot
of farmers support us.

Mr. GAYFER: It shows that the Labor
Party still has the majority in the Caucus
to win the day on primary industry, but I
am afraid Senator Wreidt and the other
Ministers do not have the confidence they
expect to have. However, in respect of the
motion before us, we find that the two
moves made as a result of a two-man
decision in each case do not have the
confidence of the Australian people, and
particularly of the people who back -the

Government that made the decisions.
It is interesting to note that according

to the Daily News of the 16th February-
the day after it was decided the Australian
dollar would hold in line with the Ameri-
can *dollar-the Premier of Western Aus-
tralia was to discuss devaluation with the
Prime Minister. This was not the first
time; it was the second occasion. The
Premier was also to visit Canberra Immedi-
ately after the 23rd December. On this
occasion the leading article In the Daily
News of the 15th February commenced-

The Premier. Mr. Tonkin, has urged
the Prime Minister, Mr. Whitlam, to
devalue the Australian dollar.

That is what I am saying should have been
done. The Premier should have urged the
Prime Minister to devalue the Australian
dollar. The article continues-

He Is ready to fly to Canberra at a
moment's notice to press his Case.

Then there is another headline in The
West Australian of the 17th February
which reads-

Tonkin puts plea for devaluation.
Then the
February
would be

Sunday Independent on the 18th
reported that Tonkin's plea

unheard. It stated-
PREMIER Tonkin's plea to devalue

the Australian dollar has been tor-
pedoed because the Australian Prime
Minister Is commuitted to an overseas
tour.

So much for the plight of the primary
industries. If we look at the Daily News of
the same day we find the following-

Miners stand to lose $143m. on the
dollar.

Mr. Hartrey: Not the goidmlnersi
Mr. GAYFER: The honorable member

will have to prove this in a moment. On
the 23rd February The West Australian
stated-

Praise for Tonkin's dollar call.
These are the headlines.

Mr. McPharlln: What country did the
Prime Minister go to?

Mr. GAYFER: The next headline is-
Devalue by 10 per cent, says Court.

This referred to Sir Charles Court, and is
in line with what I claim should have been
done.

Mr. Graham: What did the Liberal and
Country Parties do? They did not have
any regard for the welfare of Australia.
They shuffled around to see what would
suit their political complexion 12 months
before. This was a political decision on
revaluation and had nothing to do with
the welfare of Australia. A compromise
was forced on the Commonwealth Govern-
ment by the Country Party.

Mr. GAYFER: Does the Deputy Premier
believe the decision we are discussing was
for the betterment of Australia?

Mr. Graham: Yes.
Mr. GAYPER: The Deputy Premier is

saying this?
Mr. Graham: Yes, that was the purpose

of It.
Mr.

out of
in line
at the

GAYPER: The Deputy Premier is
line with his Premier. This Is not
with the comments of the Premier
time.

Mr. Graham: I did not say that.
The ACTING SPEAKER (Mr. A. ft. Ton-

kin): Order I The member for Avon.
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Mr. GAYFER: I am sorry that the
Premier is not in his seat tonight. It is
also a pity that the Leader of the Oppo-
sition is not Present. These gentlemen are
presently In Sydney. However, I wish
the Premier were here to see the confi-
dence placed In him by his Ministers be-
hind his back when he is not in the Cham-
ber. The comments made by the Premier
in the articles and Press statements I have
read out show that he was against revalu-
ation and for devaluation of the Austra-
lian dollar In line with the U.S. dollar on
the 15th February.

Mr. Graham: Have I said anything con-
trary to that?

Mr. Rushton: Yes.
Mr. Graham: You dry up; you would

not understand plain English if you heard
It. I said nothing of the sort and you
know it. You are as poisonous as they
come.

The ACTING SPEAKER: Order!
Mr. GAYFER: There is only one Minis-

ter apart from the Deputy Premier in the
Chamber tonight.

Mr. H. D. Evans: Nearly as bad as the
Opposition when the traffic Bill was de-
bated last night.

Mr. Brady: Where is the Leader of the
Opposition?

Mr. GAYFER: He is In Sydney with
the Premier.

The ACTING SPEAKER: Order!
Mr. GAYFER: Through You, Mr. Acting

Speaker, 1 would inform the member for
Swan, that the Premier is in Sydney with
the Leader of the Opposition.

Mr. Graham: You have been reading
newspapers we read months ago. The Act-
ing Speaker should have called you to
order.

Mr. GAYPER: I am not reading from
them.

Mr. Graham: Reading, reading, old stale
newspapers.

Mr. GAYFER: Where does one get the
information from?

Mr. Graham: I thought you may be able
to prepare a case yourself. if you bad one.
All you are doing is reading the opinions of
different People.

Mr. GAYFER: As a matter of fact, if
the Deputy Premier were a full bottle on
this subject he would not be wasting his
time in this Chamber. It takes a great
deal of research to appraise the whole is-
sue and come up with an opinion.

Mr. H. D. Evans: A darned sight mome
than you have done!

Afr. GAYFER: The Minister should be
right, as he was once an academic. He
should be right on this subject, but I will

be interested to hear the Minister's reply
to the motion carried unanimously at the
Farmers' Union conference which said-

This conference is extremely dis-
turbed at the lack of responsible aC-
tion of the Australian Government in
not devaluing the Australian Dollar
after the recent American devaluation
of the Dollar.

This is the same Farmers' Union that the
Minister lauded about doing so much good
when he opened the conference this year.
The conference was representative Of
many people, and I am Itching to hear the
Minister say in a moment that we are In
no worse a position now because of the
revaluation. That is what he will tell us,
I am quite sure.

Mr. Graham: Most farmers are far bet-
ter off today than they were 12 months
ago.

Mr. W. G. Young: That is because of
wool prices.

The ACTING0 SPEAKER (Mr. A. R.
Tonkin): Order!

Mr. Graham: I said they are better off
today than they were 12 months ago. What
are you belly-aching about?

The ACTING SPEAKER: Order! The
member for Avon will be seated. The
member for Avon has the floor and I ex-
pect him to address the Chair. Proceed.

Mr. GAYFER: I believe I have made out
a substantial case-

Mr. Jones: You could have fooled us!
Mr. GAYFER: -about the incompe-

tency of this two-man Government when
it made a decision in respect of de-
valuation. Nobody can say that this was
a correct move: this is the point I am
making. No doubt the Deputy Premier will
get up and support it, but to do so he will
go against what the Premier has stated.

Mr. Graham: Don't worry about that!
Mr. GAYFER: He will do this, nothing

is surer. However, nobody-I repeat, no-
body-can make out a case to substantiate
that the actions which were taken were
the correct actions. So many millions of
dollars are being lost by the primary in-
dustry that it is not even funny.

Mr, Nalder: And will continue to be lost.
Mr. Graham: They are far more in

pocket today than when the Liberal and
Country Parties were in power.

Mr. GAYFER: The third point In my
motion states-

and that this Assembly further Calls
upon the Commonwealth Government
to take steps immediately to com-
pensate adequately all primary pro-
ducers for the losses suffered.
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In The West Australian of the 27th Mr. CAYFER: Turning now to the
December, the Treasurer
stated-

(Mr. Crean).

direct payments seemed to be the only
way to compensate industries affected
by revaluation.

This was on the 27th December, two
months before the American dollar was
devalued, and we stayed put when an-
other realignment of the currency-11.1
per cent.-came into effect. Mr. Crean
said that direct Payments seemed to be the
only way to compensate industries affected
by revaluation at the stage when the re-
valuation was 7.05 per cent. against the
U.S. dollar.

On the 4th January, 1973, the following
article appeared in The Land, a New South
Wales paper-

Every primary export industry with
a case for compensation following re-
valuation of the Australian dollar will
have its claims 'fully and sympathe-
tically considered, according to the
Minister for Primary Industry. Sena-
tor Wriedt.

It is rather strange that as a result of
pressure applied by the Tasmanian fruit
Industry-and Tasmania is Senator
Wriedt's home State-that industry is the
only one to have received compensation.
I am not implying that was not of neces-
sity, but I am saying that the promises
made and the cases put forward in respect
of other primary industries have not re-
sulted in any compensation, and it is now
April.

The Deputy Premier interjected a short
time ago to the effect that the agricultural
industries do not need assistance because
wool Is fetching a terrific price. Neverthe-
less let us go on to look at the effect of re-
valuation on the rural industries in West-
ern Australia alone.

Mr. Graham: Just tell us what is left
in the farners' pockets after your sob
story; that is the important point.

Mr. GAYFER: The utterances of the
Deputy Premier leave me cold, How could
the farming community have any confid-
ence in him when he makes such utter-
ances? I wish members of the Farmers'
Union were present in the gallery just as
the lumpers were when the Deputy Pre-
mier was discussing the industrial arbitra-
tion legislation some years ago-a matter
about which he knows something. I wish
members of the Farmers' Union were in
the gallery to hear his Present utterances
on farming matters. He is not the slightest
bit interested in the fact that the greatest
producers he has in his care-and he is
crying out about decentralisatlon-are the
primary industries.

Mr. Graham: And doing it.
Mr. GAYWER: The Minister is not; he

Is fooling himself.
Mr. Graham: You are Just hot air.

wheat situation we find that the recent
revaluation, together with the revaluation
on the 22nd December, 1971, has already
cost the growers the amount of $28,108,352
in prewrltten U.S. contracts for the 1969-
70, 1970-71, and 1971-72 harvests. And
that is not all because when one looks at
the breakup of that amount one finds that
in 1969-70--just at the time when farmers
could not afford to lose any money-

Mr. Graham: With a Liberal-Country
Party Government.

Mr. GAYPER: -2.99k a bushel was lost.
I Point out to the Deputy Premier that
these are sales of wheat on credit; I hope
he can understand that. In 1970-71 the loss
of revenue due to revaluation was 2.85c a
bushel, and in 1971-72 the loss per bushel
to the farmer was 3.85e. I have figures
here right to the bushel. In the three pools
I have mentioned a total quantity of
871,895,809 bushels were sold on terms, with
a total loss to the industry as a result of
revaluation of $28,108,352; or 3.22c for
every bushel of wheat sold. That amount
was lost through no fault of the farmers.
but as a result of the manipulation of our
currency.

Mr. Graham: A person's income is the
amount of money he has left; not what
he Pays out on any particular items.

Mr. GAYFER: To give the House an
Idea of just what that meant, I would
quote the report presented by Mr.
McDougall, one of the members of the
Australian Wheat Board. We must remem-
ber that Mr. McDougall is well respected
in the wheat industry throughout Aus-
tralia-

Mr. W. G. Young: And throughout the
world.

Mr. GAYFER: Yes, and I would say he
is responsible for more overseas sales than
any other grower member of the Wheat
Board. In his report he said-

On the three earlier Pools, however,
which have not yet been fihialised,
there is in excess of 28 million dollars
loss caused by revaluation decision. I
am extremely disappointed and upset
at the fact that no compensation has
yet been received or approved for this
loss caused by devaluation of the
Australian dollar.

I have already quoted the amount that
has been lost, and my figures may be
backed up by reference to Mr. Cass, who
said that the revaluation will cost the Aus-
tralian grower $28,108,000. So there is no
argument about that.

Mr. Nalder: Who is Mr. Cass?

Mr. GAYFER: He is the Chairman of
the Australian Wheat Board, and is an
eminent authority. He succeeded Dr.
Callaghan. So when one considers the
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interjection of the Minister for Develop-
ment and Decentrallsation that what it has
cost the farmer is the amount of money
he has not got in his pocket, or some
inane remark like that-

Mr. Graham: No, he did not say that.
Mr. GAYFER: -one must look at the

total realisation of those pools. We find
that in 1969-70 the total realisation was
121.9c a bushel; in 1970-71 it was 131c;
and in 1971-72 it was 135e. In those three
years an amount of 3.2c was lost on
every bushel of wheat sold. In 1972-73 it
is expected that the price will rise to
140c. Probably the Deputy Premier will
say, "Oh, well, It is going up": but let us
go right back and consider the season
prior to the three pools I have mentioned.
I refer to the 1967-68 season in which the
price per bushel was 14kc-a price which
has not been realised. since.

Yet on top of that, by the stroke of a
pen. we are taking a further 3.2c a bushel
from the wheat industry in Australia.
There is no argument about the fact that
the wheat producers of this State will lose
that amount-and we must remember not
all of them also produce wool: many of
them depend primarily upon the sale of
their wheat and by the quota system they
have been prevented from producing great
quantities of wheat. Yet by the stroke of
a Pen, without any compensation, and in
spite of appeals, they have lost 3.2c a
bushel. In round figures for this State that
amounts to a loss of $7,500,000. If we
assume that every wheatgrower in West-
ern Australia is a shareholder of C.B.H.
we find that $7,500,000-that is. before
freight-has been lost to approximately
13,000 growers.

Mr. Graham: Do you think farmers
this year will have a higher aggregate of
income than they had last year?

Mr. W. G. Young: Of course they will.
because of the price of wool.

Mr. Graham: It is a simple question:
answer it "~Yes" or "No".

Mr. GAYFER: I would like to quote
from the editorial of the South Australian
farmers and grazlers' publication dated
the 18th January. I think this quote will
suit the Interjection of the Deputy Prem-
ier. I quote as follows.-

The economists and city minded
politicians can talk till Doomsday but
the simple fact is that exporters have
irretrievably lost 7 p.c. of their in-
come.

in a full year this means about
$56lm to the wool industry, $40m to
the meat industry and $25m to wheat
growers. It is thus a straight out
contribution of these amounts to the
general economy by these industries.
And at a time when the wool industry
has Just gone through the greatest
recession in its history; most meat

*Producing areas are in the grip of
a record drought and the wheat in-
dustry has had three below average
seasons in a row. Nice timing!

I quite agree It is nice timing. What
compensation has been paid? We find that.
so far, approximately $3,000,000 or
$4,000,000 has been Paid to those engaged
in the fruit industry. Senator Wriedt felt
that something had to be done, particu-
larly for Tasmania, his home State. At
present we have a position where the
current price of wool has dropped by 45
per cent. So perhaps the utterances of the
Minister might have had some effect par-
ticularly if some of the grain growers were
not wool producers.

It Is now considered that the price of
meat is too high. Therefore this is a
further loss that must be borne by primary
Producers in Western Australia,

Mr. T. D. Evans: What about the
middle man?

Mr. QAYPER: Where is the middle man
that was mentioned during the debate on
the Address-in-Reply? The Minister
should carry out a study of the position
to find out exactly what he Is talking
about.

Mr. T. D. Evans: I suggest that you
should.

Mr. GAYFER: In a New South Wales
newspaper, Land, dated the 22nd February,
1973. it was claimed that the price of meat
In the United States of America would
surely rise and that buyer resistance would
come into being. That was on the 22nd
February. and I have here an article which
states precisely the effect the increased
price of meat will have on the meat indus-
try in the U.S.A. This is exactly what has
transpired.

Possibly the same effect will be felt by
those engaged in the crayfishing industry.
These increases are pricing those engaged
in primary Industry right out of the mar-
ket, exactly as our Premier knew it would
when he wanted to Support the plea of the
Primary producers in Western Australia.
We on this side Of the House give him
full marks for upholding that plea. Pro-
fessor Uocyd of the Melbourne University
states-

Mr. Graham: You would be in a spot
If you could not read!

Mr. GAYFER: I beg the Minister's par-
don. I suppose he has somebody to Prepare
his speeches.

Mr. Graham: Not necessarily.
Mr. Hutchinson: The Minister is just

being insulting.
Mr. Graham: The member for Avon has

Just read a series of newspaper dlippings.
Mr. GAYFER: I will now quote from

some Pages of notes that were prepared as
a result of some research which I was
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pleased to have done by a Mr. D'Sylva,
an officer of this Parliament. This Is not
a newspaper article. In the notes prepared
by him, the following appears-

The rural industry, particularly
wool, beef, wheat and dried fruits
continue to ride price booms, expected
to be In the record region of $5,000
million for rural industry (2). How-
ever, Professor Allan Lloyd, Melbourne
University, sees these as short term
factors obscuring long term trends.

This was written prior to the 45 per cent.
drop in the price of wool. If members care
to go out into the country to take cognis-
ance of the feeling among the people, they
will find that the confidence they had has
receded, especially after they found that
on all their wheat sold in the three pools
previously mentioned by me they will lose
a total of $7,500.000. That is a loss that
will have to be borne by the wheat pro-
ducers in this State alone. What do menm-
bers think Is the meaning behind the
motions that are passed unanimously at
the Farmers' Union conferences? Also, If
I may return to that motion which was
passed by the Farmers' Union and which
was remarked on by me previously, I would
Point out that the following was added to
the motion-

We also deplore the fact that die
Minister for Primary Industry was not
consulted when the devaluation took
place.

Mr. Moiler: You agree with unions, do
you?

Mr. GAYFER: Yes, I will read it again.
This time I will read from the speech
made by Senator Ken Wrledt, the Minister
for Primary Industry, at a rural branch
of the Victorian A.L.P. on Saturday, the
10th March last. The following is what
he had to say about compensation-

In this period of fairly frequent
exchange rate alterations, it is not
feasible to keep up a system of comn-
pensation based on rough arithmetic.
It would not only be costly, but also
endless. We believe that the best
method Is by helping industries in
difficulty to adjust to market realities,
and that industries enjoying sound
returns should be able to bear the
consequences.

What a magnificent statement! This Is a
statement by the same Minister who, in
South Australia, said that the rural in-
Industries will have to learn to walk com-
pletely on their two feet. That can be
substantiated by newspaper articles that
have been published in this State. Should
members wish to read the statements In
full by a minister who does not know
a corriedale from a mnerino, I will supply
these notes to them.

Revaluation has brought about a critical
situation for those engaged in the primary
industry of Western Australia. The farm-
ers are gradually beginning to see that
nothing has been done to effect comnpen-
sation payments. if any member would
care to go to the library and read last
week's issue of the Farmers' Weely and
many other newspapers-or if be does not
wish to do this himself he can get Mr.
D'Sylva to put the newspaper clippings
out for him-he will find that the
only concern af the Government is to con-
tinue to hedge on the subject of compen-
sation. The wheat producers have to put
themselves forward as representing a
pauper industry before any compensation
will be paid.

One Can quote many statements made by
Commonwealth Ministers who say, "We
will do somnething; we will do something."
Even in this morning's issue of The West
Australian it is stated-

Exporters hit by the revaluation of
the Australian dollar in December will
get Federal Government assistance far
any hardships that they have suf-
fered.

That has been said every day since the
23rd December, 1972, and I think I have
quoted from a newspaper that has been
published on every day since. Despite
those statements nothing has been done to
relieve the Important primary industries
that have suffered a setback which could
have been avoided by the remedies I have
already outlined.

The debates on this subject in the Com-
monwealth sphere also make very inter-
esting reading.

Mr. O'Neil: At Kainbalda the other day
the Prime Minister said to the mining in-
dustry, "If you get too used to the kick in
the shins we have given you, we will cut
your throat."

Mr. T. D. Evans:, The Deputy Leader of
the Opposition should be fair; he is
bordering on untruth.

Mr. O'Neil: He told them to bear their
sorrows gladly, or else.

Mr. GAYFER: The Bank of New South
Wales could be considered to be fairly
authoritative, because it Is recognised as
being the largest trading bank in Austra-
lia.

Mr. Hartrey: It is a great friend of the
Primary Producers.

Mr. GAYFTR: Does that make any dif-
ference? It Is the largest Australian
bank. I do not deal with that bank;
all I am doing is to state the fact.

The SPEAKER: I suggest the member
for Avon address the Chair.

Mr. GAYFER: Perhaps you, Mr.
Speaker. would call other members to
order. I do not mind decent interjections,
but inane utterances by an important and
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respected member are absolutely ridicu-
lous. I could deal with them, but to do so
would be a waste of time of the Chamber.
In the March issue of the Bank of New
South Wales Review the following
appears-

A turnabout in rural prices could
bring it back into deficit as rapidly as
it went into surplus.

This refers to the current account. We
should bear in mind that the current
account was $443,000,000 in surplus, and
two years before that it had a deficiency of
$1,000,000,000. The improvement was
brought about by the sale of primary Pro-
ducts overseas. There is no denying that,
and those figures can be substantiated.

The publication goes on to state that a
review of the Australian exchange rate
would then be necessary. It has been ack-
nowledged by many theorists that in time
it may be necessary for the Australian
dollar to follow the American dollar down,
but in the meantime we are being paid on
Prewrltten contracts on the due date in
money at its present-day value. If this does
not necessitate the Payment of compensa-
tion in accordance with the decision made
by the Federal Government-though it
was made without full Cabinet approval-
I do not know what does.

We find the Primary industries suffer-
ing. Ministers Opposite need only talk to
the Primary Producers to find out that the
present position is intolerable not only in
respect of prewritten contracts, but of con-
tracts which will be written in the future.
This ought to Please the Ministers. With
those remarks I commend the motion to
members.

Debate adjourned, on motion by Mr.
Graham (Deputy Premier).

TOWN PLANNING
Government Policies: Motion

MR. RTJSUTON (Dale) [9.1 p.m.1: At
the outset I shall move the motion because
some members might be of the opinion
that there Is no need for the motion now
that some decision has been made regard-
ing the future of the Corridor Plan. I
move-

That It is the opinion of this House:
To restore public confidence the
Government should Immediately make
a clear statement as to Its town
planning policies and including its
attitude to the Corridor Plan or its
proposals for variations and/or alter-
natives.

If the Minister had made a statement
relating to the decision on the Corridor
Plan report, the independent report of Mr.
Paul flitter, and the recommendations of
the Honorary Royal Commission, it would
be possible for us to bypass the motion.

Mr. Graham: Which report are you re-
ferring to? There are about half a dozen
of them.

Mr. RUSHTON: The three reports which
the Government has Implemented.

Mr. Graham: I did not implement the
report of the Honorary Royal Commission.
which was most scathing in its recommen-
dations.

Mr. RUSHTON: The Minister initiated
the Independent report by Mr. Paul Rlitter.
and we still have to bear the Government's
comments on It. Because of the delays
In arriving at a decision on the Corridor
Plan, a move was made in another place
for the appointment of a Select Committee
which was subsequently turned Into an
Honorary Royal Commission.

Mr. Graham: The Minister for Town
Planning of the Government which you
supported recommended that the Brand-
Nalder Government should approve the
Corridor Plan. The matter went before the
Cabinet of the day but It did not endorse
the Corridor Plan.

Mr. Hutchinson; When was this?
Mr. Graham: During the time of your

Government.
Mr. Hutchinson: it was just before the

election.
Mr. Graham: It could hardly be after

the election.
Mr. RUISHTON: I cannot see the rele-

vance of the interjection by the Deputy
Premier, because in respect of what I have
to say he will be given the opportunity to
produce information to the Howse. The
indecisions still remain. We waited two
years for a decision to be made and at
the end of that period--after an inde-
pendent inquiry and a report, as well as
alter a Royal Commission and a report.--
all we have are the comments of the
Metropolitan Region Planning Authority
on the report of the Honorary Royal Com-
mission. That is the position as it stands.

The Minister has made some remarks
in relation to this matter, and that was
all we heard from him. This caused me
to move the motion in the hope that it
will be the vehicle by which the Minister
will make a statement to Parliament on
the undecided issues in respect of the
Corridor Plan, the independent report of
Mr. flitter, and the recommendations of
the Honorary Royal Commission. These
are quite clear-cut, and there should be
no difficulty for him, at his convenience,
to give Parliament the benefit of the de-
cision of the Government on these re-
ports.

All we have learnt is gained from reports
of what the Minister has said. In The
West Australian of the 3rd Apr1, the
following report appears--

The Minister for Town Planning, Mr.
Davies, said last night that now the
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framework for regional planning had
been endorsed the M.R.P.A. Would
tackle other important issues.

We heard this two years ago.
Mr. Moiler: Are you suggesting the

Minister should have ignored the recom-
mendations of the Honorary Royal Com-
mission?

Mr. RUJSHTON: He has not come up
with anything.

Mr. Moiler: You have the report f .rom
the M.R.P.A.

Mr. RUSHTON: That is not the
Minister's report.

Mr. Moiler: It is Issued with isa
approval.

Mr. RUSHTON: It does not take much
to do that. He has to make a decision
on the recommendations of the various
parties, but he has not done that.

In broad outline the framework of the
corridor concept has been accepted, but
even so many flexibilities have been in-
cluded. I agree that there is room for
flexibility in town planning. Referring to
aspects which had to be tackled, the same
article continues-

Traffic
They Included the location of big

generators of traffic-shopping centres
and high-density housing areas&-
which were becoming a matter of con-
cern.

"It seems certain that the M.R.P.A.
will have to exercise greater control
over the shze end location of such
developments." Mr. Davies said.

He said that the plan's endorsement
did not mean that future growth could
occur only in the four corridors. There
was nothing to stop further corridors
-such as one going north-east-being
allotted in future.

of course, the MR.P.A. and the Royal
Commission disagree with Mr. Davies con-
carning that future corridor because It
would compromise the Present available
open space in the Swan Valley.

These are the decisions the Government
must make known to Parliament and the
public; and that Is a I am asking It to do
when it replies to the motion. I want the
Government to let us know Its reactions.
The Government should not find this very
difficult because it has had so much time
in which to form an opinion. The Minister
has major issues to tackle within the
corridor concept and one would have
thought those decisions would be made by
now Instead of which the framework has
only Just been accepted.

Mr. Graham: Do you know how much
authority the Minister for Town Planning
has over the M.R.P.A.?

Mr. RUSHTON: The Minister has Par-
lament to which to present matters.

Mr. Graham: I am speaking of the
Minister. In respect of Parliament it is
the authority which brings the matter to
Parliament, or rather should; and up to
date it has not. That is according to the
Act.

Mr. RUSHTON: The Deputy Premier
can act as adviser on this occasion because
he-

Mr. H. D. Evans:
your speech no end.

That should improve

Mr. Graham: I think you should have
made some inquiries before speaking on the
subject.

Mr. RUSHTON: I have made Inquiries
and I will submit my findings to the
Deputy Premier to see if he agrees that
they are correct. Firstly. I submit that
the recommendations in the reports should
be answered in Parliament. Surely this is
a reasonable submission.

Mr. Graham: The reports have been
submitted to Parliament and the author-
ity's comments on them have also been
submitted.

Mr. RUSHTON: We have received no
comments on them by the Government.

Mr. Graham: Except that the Govern-
ment made a decision a couple of weeks
ago.

Mr. RUJSHTON:
not Presented any
recommendations an

The Government has
findings upon the

d reports.
Mr. Graham: It has, significantly

enough.
Mr. RIJSHTODN: It has not presented

them to Parliament.
Mr. Graham: It has announced its

approval of the M.R.P.A. plan In principle.
What else do you want?

Mr. Moiler: You read that out yourself.
Don't you realise that?

Mr. RUSHTON: All we know we learnt
from a newspaper. That is the courtesy
Paid to Parliament after an independent
report was commissioned. Surely Parlia-
ment Is entitled to know what the Govern-
ment thinks of the report! The person
who compiled the report should be made
aware of what the Government thinks of
it.

Mr. Graham: If you agree with the
report, you put one word on it; that Is,
"Approved". That is all that is necessary.

Mr. RUSHTON: The Royal Commission
made several recommendations which con-
flict with the M.R.P.A. report.

Mr. Graham: But after studying every-
thing, the Government decided to approve
the M.R.P.A. plan.

Mr. RUISHTON: i principle.
Mr. Graham: Yes.

Mr. RUSHTON: The Government has
decisions to make. When will It do this?
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Mr. Graham: Prom time to time. You
have already arced that flexibility should
be the by-word.

Mr. RUSHTON: That is so. We must
have flexibility, but we must also have
decisions so that people know where they
stand in connection with town planning.

Mr. Graham: It was agreed to in prin-
ciple, but It is flexible nevertheless. How
much further can a Government go, or
should a Government go?

Mr. RTJSHTON: We have not known
for two years which way the Government
is going.

,.Mr. Moiler: Forward!
Mr. RUSHTON: So we are waiting to

see.
Mr. Graham: Your Governiment would

not approve or otherwise anything. It
shirked the issue.

Mr. ERUSHTON: If the Deputy Premier
will study the dates be will see there was
no time in which the previous Govern-
ment could have done anything.

Mr. Graham: Oh yes, there was. The
only reference all the way through the file
is, "Cabinet notes".

Mr. RUSHTON: if I am to continue
this discussion with the Deputy Premier, I
must say that it was only a matter of
weeks and yet the previous Government
was supposed to have implemented the
Corridor Plan while, on the other hand,
this Government has taken two years to
agree to the framework.

Mr. Graham: Your party and the
Country Party at the other end decided on
a course. The Government could not
make a decision while that Royal Commis-
sion was In progress. Be a bit fair.

Mr. RUSHTON: If I can interject on
the Deputy Premier-

Mr. Graham: I think you would be far
better off to sit down.

Mr. RUBHTON: -there should have
been no need for a Royal Commission.

Vital decisions must be made on the
central business district and its future.
Conflict on this subject exists between the
corridor concept submitted by the M.R.PA.
and the Royal Commission's findings.
Surely one is entitled to know which con-
cept the Government embraces.

Another Important aspect Is transport.
it is quite clear that the corridor concept
Is dependent on the PERTh report. A di-
vergence of opinion exists on that, so how
will the corridor concept be affected by the
changes in implementing the PERTS re-
port? All these aspects must be considered
and decided.

There is no doubt that the Government
must report to Parliament concerning the
provision of adequate suburban and urban
building blocks. This Is another Govern-
ment responsibility on which we arc await-
Ing some policy. The Government has

brrn able to ride on the back of the pre-
vious Government and the arrangements
it made for the provision of adequate
blocks. However, the Government must
not delay for too long because the present
reserves are being very swiftly utilised, as
was indicated during the discussion on a
certain motion in Parliament last year. We
are unaware of just how long we can go on
utilising the reserves established at con-
siderable cost, energy, and effort in the
past.

The chaos of the last two years In de-
cision-making in the town planning and
regional field appears to be the responsi-
bility of the Deputy Premier who has a
"thing' about town planning in this State.
The Deputy Premier tried his very best to
redirect the future of town planning in
this State, and I think history will indi-
cate why he failed.

Mr. Graham: What do you mean by
those brave words?

Mr. RUSHTON: I am referring to the
fact that the Deputy Premier is no longer
the Minister for Town Planning. History
will reveal why this is the case and why
he did not succeed in his earnest efforts.

Mr. Graham:. It was made perfectly
plain that the roles of town planning and
development and decentralisation, together
with the north-west and Deputy Premier,
were too much to carry and I asked to be
relieved of a certain Portfolio. There Is
nothing unusual about that.

Mr. RUSHTON: I accept that explana-
tion from the Deputy Premier but we must
also remember there was a conflict in
directions.

Mr. Graham: ft is true I upheld very
many appeals, but so did my predecessor
and my successor.

Mr. RUJSHTON: I am not relating my
remarks to that: I am thinking of a par-
ticular concept. I think the former Minis-
ter was attempting to implement a
particular concept which, of course, would
take some time to achieve.

Mr. Graham: Where would there be any
evidence of that?

Mr. RUSHTON: I think the evidence
Is In public statements, and in the
Minister's own statement regarding the
north-east corridor.

Mr. Graham: That Is so, and you will
notice that my successor is doing very
much the same sort of thing.

Mr. RUSHTON: He Is not saying very
much at all.

Mr. Graham: If there were any mnerit
In a mass of words you would be a chamn-
pion.

The SPEARER: I suggest the member
for Dale address the Chair.
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Mr. RUSHTON: The upshot of the in-
volvement of the Deputy Premier in town
planning was that he attempted to make
certain changes. That is my appreciation
of the situation, and It Is also the opinion
of those to whom I have spoken about his
involvement. Because of that, and be-
cause of the indecision of the Government
on very important matters, we have not
made sufficient progress.

I have mentioned only a few of the
decisions which are yet to be made by the
Government, and the reason this House
deserves a very clear and frank statement
from the Minister for Town Planning and
from the Government. I have also men-
tioned, in brief, the conflict between the
Corridor Plan and the PERTS report. They
are closely linked but 1 do not intend to
present the full details now.

I am suggesting that if the PERTS re-
port is to be discarded by the Government
then the Corridor Plan will also be In
doubt, We desire to know the intentions
of the Government In this regard, and the
relationship between the PERTS report
and the Corridor Plan.

The future of the central business dis-
trict is another matter which needs to be
clarified. I know that It can be kicked
around as a political football because the
subject appeals to everybody. I have held
my view on the matter for a long time.

The provision of an adequate number
of building blocks also presents a real
problem and we would like to know the
intentions of the Government In this re-
gard. Despite the promises contained in
the Premier's policy speech two years ago,
we do not know the intentions of the
Government.

The Honorary Royal Commission which
Inquired Into the Corridor Plan for Perth
faced up to its task courageously, and
made certain recommendations.

I think it would be reasonable for me
to mention aL few of the findings of the
Royal Commission to highlight the sub-
missions I am making. I want to stress
that it is the duty of the Minister f or
Town Planning to Present a full report to
the House. Various reports on regional
and town planning have been made to the
Government. They are available for all
to see.

The report of the Honorary Royal Corn-
mission shows that in 1989 the Metro-
politan Region Planning Authority for-
mally adopted the corridor concept
for future development of the metropoli-
tan area. The Corridor Plan for Perth
was published In 1970. This Is the plan
which the present Deputy Premier ex-
pected the Government of the day to pre-
sent a month or two before the election.
One can imagine the reaction it would
have aroused when there was a chance of
a Change of Government.

In January, 1971. the Perth Regional
Transport Study report wats published.
This was another report related to the
Corridor Plan, and it should be con-
sidered by the Government before it
makes a final decision on the corridor
concept for our future development.

in August, 1971, Mr. Paul Hitter was
appointed by the Government to comment
on the Corridor Plan. This matter was
introduced into the House. Although there
was no disagreement with the holding of
an independent Inquiry, this side of the
House considered that because of Mr.
flitter's commitments it would be unwise
to appoint him. To take no notice of Mr.
Hitter's views would be to act like an
ostrich.

The SPEAKER: Order! There is too
much conversation.

Mr. RUSHTON: Whilst I do not repre-
sent Crestwood-as does the member for
Canning-i can appreciate the first-class
work done by the town planner. The town
planner, of course, was Mr. flitter. I
suggest that one should keep a very open
mind when considering the reports which
have been presented to us.

In September, 1971, a Select Commltte6
was appointed by the Legislative Council
to study the Corridor Plan. Parliament was
becoming concerned with the contradictory
statements of the Government with regard
to planning.

In January. 1972. the Ritter report,
An Analytical Study of the Proposed
Corridor Plan for Perth and Possible
Alternate Approach to a Regional Plan for
the Metropolitan Area was published. We
have not yet received the Government's
findings on that report, which was pre-
sented 12 months ago. Those findings
have not been presented to Parliament
and it Is our desire that the Minister for
Town Planning should comment on the
report.

The Select Committee was converted
to an Honorary Royal Commission In Feb-
ruary, 1972. The report presented by the
Royal Commission contains considerable
valuable material, and I Would like to
congratulate the commissioners on their
dedication, and on their findings. They
presented a most common-sense report.

I also have the benefit of the in-
dependent inquirer, and his additional
comments on the report of the Honorary
Royal Conunisslon. The reports are similar
in many respects and that is one reason
why the Government has a responsibility
to consider the three reports and come
down with a final decision.

At the present time only the skeleton
of the Corridor Plan has been accepted.
We have not received any details which,
of course, will be the meat in the
sandwich. The Government, after two
Years in office, has not committed itself.
The skeleton of the Corridor Plan has
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been accepted but the Minister is in the
Position where he can opt out at any time
because the only report we have seen has
been his statement in the Press. The Min -
ister has left himself in a flexible situa-
tion. He is able to present administrative
decisions on town planning which would
not be in line with what has been said
in the past.

It is interesting to refer to a number of
the conclusions reached by the Royal
Commissioners. They highlight the need
for the Minister to finalise a number of
factors in respect of future town planning
decisions and concepts. The commission-
ers said-

The corridor concept development is
sound in principle.

This indicates their support for the corri-
dor concept. To continue-

The Corridor Plan for Perth is
strictly a "Land Use" plan designed to
prevent the Perth Central Business
District workforce from exceeding
90,000 before the year 1989.

in fact the figures vary and sometimes a
work force of 100,000 people is estimated
for the central business district before the
year 1989. The commissioners continue-

This fundamental reason for restrict-
ing the CR13 is supported by most
people presenting evidence. However,
one witness, who is directly Involved
in the operations of the Perth City
Council, considers that it would be ex-
tremely difficult if not impossible to
implement the measures needed to
limit the Central City growth to the
proposed workforce in the period sug-
gested. The Commission supports this
contention.

Already we see a conflict of opinion about
future development. The Corridor Plan
recommends a work force under 100,000.
Many people believe It would not be prac-
tical to bold the work force at this figure
if the city Is to be viable. The report con-
tinues-

The Corridor Plan fails to state what
will occur in the Central City growth
rate after 1989;

Later on it Is stated-
The Corridor Plan, although It re-

suits after study and rejection of three
non-corridor planning alternatives, Is
not the result of consideration of al-
ternative Corridor Plans.

We now see that there Is conflict between
the independent investigator, the Royal
Commissioners, and the Metropolitan Re-
glen Planning Authority in relation to what
was considered. To continue-

The Corridor Plan does not make
adequate provision for workforce cen-
tres within the North-West and South-
East corridors.

The Royal Commissioners state that the
M.R.P.A. Is not paying enough attention
to the provision of work force centres
throughout the corridors. To continue-

The Corridor Plan, while purporting
to provide bands of open space be-
tween centres of development in the
North-West and South-East corridors,
does in fact propose that these belts
will be intrusions from the non-urban
wedges.

obviously more doubts are creeping in. To
continue-

The Corridor Plan does not contain
any 'firm transportation proposals...

Possibly this is one of the most Important
decisions to be made. The Government
should clearly state its intentions, After
all, it has had a long time to study the
PERT8 report. As a matter of fact, it is
generally accepted at the moment that the
Government has not made a firm state-
ment with regard to the PERTM recoin-
nmendations.

Mr. Graham: Not only has the Govern-
ment made decisions but it Is doing some-
thing about it, too.

Mr. RUSHTON: Parliament is entitled
to know what the Government intends
with respect to the PERTS recommenda-
tions.

Mr. Graham: it has been submitted to
Parliament in respect of certain amend-
ments to the railway system. Also. there-
have been talks with the Commonwealth
which has agreed to certain further studies
being undertaken. Is there anything wrong
with that?

Mr. RUJSHTON: I answer the Deputy
Premier by saying it is a fragmentation
of what was projected. I agree that there
are certain alternatives to the PERTS
recommendations. I am not an expert on
this but I have tried to look at the matter
logically.

The Deputy Premier has mentioned the
railway system. Parliament directed the
Government to carr out a feasibility study
In relation to the sinking of the railway
and the concept of modernisation. Before
this feasibility study has been undertaken,
another development-the exhibition ball-
is proposed to be built on the present rail-
way lie. This concerns me a great deal.
It seems a hotch patch.

Mr- Graham: It is nothing of the sort.
Whether the line goes underground where
it is or round about Hay Street, that land
will still be available for other purposes.
There has never been any question about
that.

Mr. RUB WFON: I Understand the ex-
hibition hall will be built alongside the
railway line, as it exists at present. it
depends what the feasibility study re-
veals, but many knowledgeable people tell
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me that the route presently projected
through Murray and Hay Streets will not
be proceeded with eventually.

Mr. Graham: That is only a guess.
Mr. RUSHTON: Of course.
Mr. Graham: That is why it is being

studied; to remove it from the realm
of being a guess.

Mr. RUSHTON: That is reasonable.
Mr. Graham: That is what the Govern-

ment is doing.
Mr. RUSHTON: The Government does

not have the right to move until the mat-
ter cornea before the Parliament.

Mr. Graham: The Government made a
decision and brought a proposition to Par-
liamnent in accordance with that decision.
This was done to enable It to go ahead.

Mr. RUSHTON: We are still awaiting
the results of the feasibility study to see
what will be done in future. There is also
the matter of the bus station. Last Year
we were told it was a temporary building,
but this year we have been told it is per-
manent. This is not in accordance with
the PESTS report.

Mr. Graham: The Government is not
bound by PESTS; It is only a guide.

Mr. RUSHTON: I do not want to go
fully into the PESTS report, but I say that
the corridor concept depends on the
PERTS report being implemented.

Mr. Graham: That is wrong.
Mr. RUSHTON: Many people share this

view..
Mr. Graham: Have you read the report

You have in Your hand?
Mr. RUSHTON:

PESTS report and
interrelated. One
up the other.

Yes, it says that the
the Corridor Plan are
was Prepared to back

Mr. Graham: Does it say that?
Mr. RUSHTON: Yes.
Mr. Graham: Are you sure?
Mr. RUSHTON: Yes. If I am to read

every section of this report I may not
finish tonight.

Mr. Graham: Just that one bit.
Mr. RUSHTION: The commissioners end

on this very subject. They say that the
PERTS report and the Corridor Plan are
interrelated. The independent investiga-
tor also made the same comment. The
Deputy Premier would have read his re-
port.

Mr. Graham: I read both of them and I
hope you did too.

Mr. RUSHTON: Yes, and I read his
comments on the findings of the Royal
Commission which are very illuminating.
The Deputy Premier has, by way of inter-
jection, confirmed certain happenings. The

Minister for Town Planning should make
a clear statement to the Parliament in
respect of future planning. He should
make this statement recognising the points
made by the Royal Commissioners, the
independent investigator, and the M.R.P.A..
the last-mentioned authority having made
many submissions indeed.

I shall quote one or two further com-
ments made by the Royal Commissioners.
Parliament owes it to Royal Commissioners
to consider every suggestion which they
put before us. The commissioners refer
to PESTS as follows--

The Statement when referring to
PESTS 1970 which says--

'A major conclusion from the
study is that corridor planning
provides the most economic trans-
Port system for the Region, thus
endorsing the MRPA's decision
that Urban expansion will be in
corridor form'

is misleading..
Fortunately. I have come to the exact point
which the Deputy Premier wanted me to
quote. The commissioners state that the
report by the M.R.P.A. is misleading.

Mr. Graham: Where?
Mr. RUSHTON: On page 70 of the re-

port.
Mr. Graham: A few moments ago you

said exactly the opposite.
Mr. RUSHTON: No, I did not.
Mr. Graham: I have beard everything!
Mr. RUSHTON: I will clear this up be-

cause I do not want any doubt in connec-
tion with what I have said.

I am saying the M.R.P.A. has made a
certain statement in the Corridor Plan for
Perth report, and the Royal Commission-
ers have said that the statement was mis-
leading as far as it related to PESTS and
the Corridor Plan.

Mr. Graham: Did you not say earlier
that the report had stated the PERTS
scheme and the Corridor Plan were inter-
related? And Is not what you have in front
Of You at the Present moment saying the
opposite of that?

Mr. RUSHTON: I will read it again so
that there will be no doubt. I will go back
to paragraph 11.9, which says--

Statements such as--
,, - . the Plan proposes that the
miajor sub-regional centre should
be located west of Lake Joondalup

.however . .. it is considered
that the centre will therefore be
at Whitford

and-
_By 1989 sub-regional centres will
have been developing at Lake
Joondalup ...

tend to create confusion in the pub-
lic mind.
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The next paragraph read--
The Statement when referring to

PERTS 1970 which says--
"A major conclusion from the
study is that corridor planning
provides the most economic trains-
port system for the Region, thus
endorsing the MRPA's decision
that Urban expansion will be in
corridor form"

is misleading-
Mr. Graham: There you are!
Mr. RUSHTON: I think It backs up my

point.
Mr. Graham: You said they were inter-

related and dependent upon one another.
Your concept is misleading.

Mr. RUSHTON: I am quite happy to dis-
cuss it with the Deputy Premier and let
him read the comments in the Corridor
Plan and the comments made by the in-
dependent person who made a report to
the Government at that time. I think it
will be found there is no great conflict.
The report goes on to illustrate the differ-
ences of opinion that are held by the
Royal Commissioners. It says-

A closer study would show that the
"urban clusters" depicted In the Cor-

ridor Plan are not sub-regional
centres.

Further on it read--
Although Midland Is situated at the

hub of four major road arteries and
Is connected by efficient, rapid rail
transport to the city, it cannot
seriously be considered as a sub-
regional centre under the proposals of
the Corridor Plan.

Doubts are expressed as to the findings
of the MJR.P.A. I now read a finding of
the Royal Commissioners which affects my
electorate-

The clas'fication of Armadale as a
sub-regional centre also is unjustified
in view of the statement that the bulk
of the workforoe population in the
South East corridor will commute to
the city urban core.

Of course, we all expect the work force to
be working in those regions, and we there-
fore expect them to be compatible, com-
plete regional centres. We do not wish
the work force to be commuting to the
city-that would defeat the objective we
arc hoping to achieve. The report also
state--

The Eastern corridor, because it Is
proposed to be predominantly rural,
cannot be classified as an urban
corridor.

Urban and industrial expansion, to
the East of the city, in the foothills
and hills areas is inadequate..

The North West corridor extensions
will create land-price dangers as large
areas are controlled by a few com-
panies.

These are statements which highlight the
points I have already made. What is the
Government doing about ensuring that
there is adequate urban land on which
people can build? The report continues--

The Corridor Plan would require
much greater expenditure on freeways
than that proposed in the PERTS
study..

These are observations about matters
which the Government must tackle. The
report goes on-

Escalation of land values arising
from rezoning produces financial
hardship to bona fie owners.,.

This is another matter which the Govern-
ment must tackle. The Minister might
say he has taken care of the northern
development, but we need further explana-
tion of that. I understand he Intends to
introduce legislation, so no doubt we will
be given an explanation then.

The report further says--
The M.R.P.A. has too much discre-

tionary power in the matter of altera-
tions to the Region scheme.

Parliament may be required to debate this
matter in the future. We all know changes
have been made to the regional scheme.
We expected the changes would come to
Parliament to be debated. We were given
to understand that would be the case. We
now find the rezoning of large areas being
explained away by the authority. There
is a conflict. The M.RI'.A. does not con-
cede this Point, although It agrees with
most of the points made by the Royal
Commissioners.

Paragraph 11.20 of the report reads--
The Land Tax collections are not

dispersed for the improvement of
public utilities or amenities...

The Honorary Royal Commission Is saying
that land tax should be used for the
development of facilities. This is another
matter on which the Government must
make a decision. Paragraph 11.21 of the
report reads--

The general public has little under-
standing of the roles and responsibili-
ties of the different agencies involved,
in the Town Planning, taxing, rating,
and transportation processes.

That is Just a general statement. The
report goes on to mention that un-
warranted delays still occur in the finalisa-
tion of town planning schemes. This is a
matter to which the Previous Government
gave attention and to which the present
Government will give more attention.
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I am showing that there is a real need
for the Government to report to Parlia-
ment upon the various reports that have
been prepared for it. Another paragraph
of the report say--

The Corridor Plan would be preju-
diced by the discarding of the PERTS
recommendations since it relies heavi-
ly upon the PERTS study for its
justification.

That is another statement which clears up
the points about which the Deputy Prem-
ier has been nagging me.

Mr. May: Not really.
Mr. Graham: I think you have confused

the situation.
Mr. RUSHTON: The Royal Commis-

sioners think one is very much related to
the other. That appears on page 73 of the
report. I think we can all agree that the
Government has yet to deal with that
matter.

Another paragraph of the report
reads--

Owners of land are being rated and
taxed on an unimproved capital value
which includes the value of the essen-
tial services provided by private
capital.

That is a further facet of town planning
and development which the Government
must resolve--the double taxing system
which has been introduced. The answer
to the problem has not been found but we
should continue to do research into it to
see if we can find the answer.

The Royal Commissioners made 25 re-
commendations. We are told the M.R.P.A.
supported many of them but It completely
disagreed with a recommendation that Its
discretionary powers be limited. The
M.R.P.A. has yet to make decisions upon
other recommendations, so the report of
the Royal Commission has not as yet been
totally reported upon, not even by the
M.R.P.A., and there has been nothing
from the Government.

I think I have demonstrated that the
Government has an obligation to report
to this House upon the Issues I have raised.
The Royal Commissioners are certainly
entitled to know the Government's re-
sponse to their findings. Otherwise, their
deliberations and dedicated work would
have been of no value. What is the good of
members applying themselves in such a
Way if their work Is not to be considered
and reported upon to Parliament? Mem-
bers would have no confidence in ever
undertaking serious and involved work if
they thought their efforts would not at
least be considered in depth and reported
upon.

We believe the Independent report
prepared by Mr. Paul flitter should
be reported upon to Parliament.
The appointment was agreed to In

Parliament, and surely the report should
have been monde to Parliament, as it was.
What we need now is the finding of the
Government upon the report.

So, I hope that in due course the Min-
ister for Town Planning will recognise the
urgent need-because much time has been
lost-speedily to report to Parliament
upon the future intentions of the Govern-
ment. Nothing creates a quicker loss of
confidence than uncertalnty. We have had
uncertainty in town planning matters for
at least two years now. As the Deputy
Premier said earlier, the decision was to be
taken on the Corridor Plan a few weeks
before the 1971 election.

Mr. Graham: The Minister for Town
Planning of the day felt he could recom-
mend to the Government-which he did-
the endorsement of the plan and the Gov-
erment chose, without spending extra
time studying it, to reject that recommen-
dation and merely note It.

Mr. Hutchinson: It did not reject it at
all.

Mr. Graham; It rejected the recominen-
dation and merely noted it.

Mr. Hutchinson: It did not have time to
study it.

The SPEAKER: Order!I
Mr. Graham: And there was still further

time tio study it.
Mr. RUSHTON: This is very descriptive

of the two Governments. The Minister
for Town Planning at that time, with his
vast experience, was prepared to recom-
mend the acceptance of the Corridor Plan.
The Government of the day-in fairness
to what would take plate on the 20th Feb-
ruary, 1971-proposed to make a decision
after the decision of the people.

Mr. Graham: It chickened out. It was
afraid to offend the electors so it pre-
ferred not to make a decision.

Mr. RUSHTON: That Is untrue and un-
acceptable.

Mr. Graham: Other Important decisions
were made within a day or two of the
election. I can give you some examples If
you like.

The SPEAKER: order!
Mr. RUSHTON: The Deputy Premier has

implied that the previous Government
could not make a decision In weeks. This
Government has taken 104 weeks.

Mr. Graham: It could not make a de-
cision when a Minister had submitted a
recommendation to Cabinet!

Mr. RUSE(TON: Obviously had there
been no change of Government, the
decision would have been made straight
after the 20th February.

Mr. Graham: That is wishful thinking.
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Mr. RUSHTON: And we would have
been so far ahead at this time.

Mr. Hutchinson: Cabinet does not accept
a recommendation of such serious Import
without consideration, and you know it.

Mr. Graham; It had time. but the matter
did not come before Cabinet again.

The SPEAKER: Order!
Mr. RUSHTON: In conclusion I would

just like to say that the Government has
received a report from an Honorary Royal
Commission Initiated by Parliament and
an independent report by Mr. Paul Ritter.
It is clear that the Minister for Town
Planning must come before Parliament at
an early date to report upon the Govern-
ment's future intentions in regard to town
planning.

Debate adjourned, on motion by Mr.
Graham (Deputy Premier).

EDUCATION
Boarding Allowances: Motion

MR. RIDGE (Kimberley) (10.04 p.m.]:
I move-

That In the opinion of this House,
the Commonwealth living-away-from-
home allowances for isolated students
to which a means test Is applicable, n-
fairly discriminates against parents
whose Incomes are necessarily above
the means test in remote areas with
high costs of living. This House is
also of the opinion that the State
should restore its living-away-from-
home allowances to supplement those
from the Commonwealth unitil such
time as the Federal Government
abolishes the means test.

In speaking to the motion, let me say that
It will not take me very long to explain
my motivation in moving it. I consider
the case for the restoration of the State
living-away-from-home allowance Is simple
and straightforward. I hope that the
motion will be considered on other than
political grounds.

Mr. T. D). Evans: It wiil be; that Is for
sure.

Mr. RIDGE: I understand that through-
out the north-west and the far north of
Western Australia. approximately 1,000
people would be eligible to receive the State
living-away-from-home allowance If it
were restored. These people come from all
walks of life and they reside In the Kim-
berley, the Pilbara, the Murchison-Eyre
electorate, and I believe, Mr. Speaker, in
your own electorate of Gascoyne.

Because of the Government's decision to
make the payment of certain allowances
subject to a means test, many of these
people will receive benefits which are
only fractionally higher than those they
received fornerly. We appreciate and

acknowledge the increase that was ranted,
but we are not very happy about the spirit
in which it was granted.

It is essential that a family in the north
has a comparatively high income in order
that it might cope with the high cost of
living. By applying a means test to that
Income we are immediately disadvantaging
the people for whom the living-away-from-
home allowance was originally created.
For this reason we are seeking the restora-
tion of the State allowance.

I believe it has been evident for many
years now that some rather severe prob-
lems are associated with the education of
children In remote areas; that is, those
children who are out of reach of estab-
lished primary and/or secondary schools.
The degree of disadvantage suffered by the
children is dependent upon the area in
which they live, and, of course, on the
action which is taken by their parents in
an effort to give them a good education.
I have often heard this good education
referred to in the House as a child's un-
deniable basic right. Unfortunately the
quality of the education received by these
children depends upon the choice made
by their parents of the alternatives avail-
able. it is equally unfortunate that the
choice Is inevitably determined according
to economic considerations. This is a great
tragedy because no parents should have to
consider their children's education on
economic grounds. Every child in this
State is entitled to equal educational op-
portunities. The children in the north are
being denied equal opportunities at the
present moment, and with the new allow-
ances the parents and the children will
not be much better off than they have
been in the past.

Broadly speaking, the alternatives which
have beet available are correspondence
courses. correspondence courses supple-
mented by the School of the Air--often
with a parent or governess acting as
tutor-schooling In regional centres, and
schooling in the metropolitan area. Each
of these choices has some serious draw-
backs either from a cost or an educational
point of view. If we could remove the
possibility of financial loss, most parents
would opt to send their children to the
metropolitan area In order to overcome the
educational disabilities.

The people most seriously affected are
those living on pastoral properties, and in
same instances they do not have educa-
tional facilities within hundreds of miles.
The people living in some of the smaller
towns are affected to a lesser extent.
Children who have reached the secondary
level find that the town does not boast a
Junior high school, so the parents find it
Is necessary to send them away to school.
The people living In country towns make
the obvious choice: that Is, to send their
children to Perth-if they can afford It.
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The only alternative Is for the children
to undertake correspondence lessons, in
which case quite often the primary school
headmaster also gives them a certain
amount of tuition. People living on out-
back stations have the alternatives I have
already referred to, but as I painted out,
each alternative has certain serious draw-
backs.

A lack of interpretation Is something
that particularly affects children 'who are
undertaking correspondence courses and,
In some Instances, it affects the supervis-
ing parents. W~here parents are not able
to cope with the supervision of corres-
pondence lessons it would be desirable for
them to be able to employ a. governess;
but unfortunately that Is not always pos-
sible. With regard to the School of the
Air, the cost of purchasing a radio trans-
ceiver is often sufficient to deter most
parents. Quite apart from that, it is a
well-known fact that many children have
some difficulty In absorbing radio lessons.
We must agree it is highly desirable that
these children have the opportunity to
receive tuition from qualified teachers.

In most cases-and when I say "most
cases"* I mean certainly In my electorate
-it is out of the question for parents to
consider sending their children to regional
centres for education, because none of the
towns in the Kimberley electorate has
hostel facilities for other than Aboriginal
children. So It Is out of the question for
European people to send their children to
the towns unless they are able to arrange
private acconunodation - and that Is
rather difficult. So In the pastoral areas
we are left with the final alternative; that
is, to send the children to Perth. Once
again, this is dependent upon the economic
position of the family. I am aware of
instances under these circumstances which
have resulted in families splitting up and
the mother shifting into the town and tak-
ing a job so that she can keep a second
home and send her children to school.
This has some advantages inasmuch as the
mother is able to supervise the children to
some extent and to give them the care
and love they need. However, I think it
is tragic that families should have to con-
sider splitting up.

Fortunately in recent times political
parties have woken up to the fact that
most of the people 'who go to the north
these days are not interested only in a
high remuneration. I think politicians
have started to appreciate that many
people are going to the north in order to
build a future for themselves and their
children. These are the types of people
we need up there, but each year it be-
comes Increasingly obvious that the fore-
most thought In the minds of such people
Is the quality of the education available
to their children, Unless we can provide

opportunities for the education of child-
ren In the north that are equal to the
opportunities available to the children in
the south we will not be able to get people
to live 1:: thev dwecplng isolated areas.

For this reason it was pleasing to note
that political parties were coming to grips
with this problem by promising certain
ref orms during the Federal election cam-
paign In 1972. Those of us who represent
remote areas welcomed the Commonwealth
announcement that an allowance of $350
was to be made available free of a means
test. However, we were not overjoyed
about the payment of an additional $350
subject to a means test, and we were
extremely disappointed to learn that the
State Government had decided to dis-
continue the payment of the State allow-
ance. This means that most of the people
In my electorate will not be much further
advanced financially than they were under
the old scheme. So the promise of a better
deal for people In isolated areas has turned
out to be nothing more than a political red
herring.

Mr. T, D. Evans: They are better off
than they would have been had the former
Federal Government remained In office, as
I will show you.

Mr. RIDGE: I look forward to hearing
that. The previous Commonwealth Gov-
ernment promised $400 free of a means
test-

Mr. T. D. Evans: On the eve of an
election,

Mr. RIDGE: -and it was not intended
that it should interfere 'with the State
allowances.

it is my opinion that by applying a
means test to such a low base figure the
Commonwealth is ignoring the high cost of
living in the north; and the State Govern-
ment by discontinuing the State allowance
Is equally guilty of not understanding the
situation. If there Is any justification for
a means test, it is my belief that it should
be applied to local conditions; and con-
ditions vary throughout this vast 81*10.
The conditions in the north of the State
are completely different from those in the
metropolitan area. If It is not possible to
do that surely the districts which are
within the areas nominated by the Com-
monwealth Government as being isolated
-that Is, the taxation allowance zones A
and B-should be dissociated from the
means test and should not have to comply
with the Commnonwealth conditions.

Mr. T. D3. Evans: I think you would
agree there are some areas beyond zone A
within the meaning of the Commonwealth
income tax legislation that are more
isolated than some within that zone.

Mr. RITDGE: Yes, I agree. If it is not
constitutionally possible for the Common-
wealth to exempt those people in zones A
and B from the means test, then I believe
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the State should continue to pay the State
allowance. At least then it would be
acknowledging the areas of greatest need.

Surely to goodness the purpose of the
boarding-away-from-home allowance is to
create equality throughout the State and
to give all children equal access to a good,
sound education: but that does not appear
to be the case under the new proposal
because it discriminates against people who
have had the opportunity to receive a good
education: it discriminates against those
who work hard and save to attain a better
station in life; and it discriminates against
people who, by choice or otherwise, live in
these areas.

I do not believe it is fair that people with
trade or professional qualifications should
be financially penalised because their
education, training, and experience qualify
them for higher positions. For the same
reason I believe it is not fair to discrimin-
ate against working wives and husbands
who take on extra jobs in order to make
life more bearable. The moment we penal-
Ise People for that we take away their
incentive to try to improve their station In
life.

I know of many women who have taken
jobs in order to give their children a good
education, and they Pay high taxes on
their income. But now the Government is
telling them that because they work so
hard in order to earn more money their
entitlement is not as great as that of less
industrious people. To me this is obnoxi-
ous. The State and Commonwealth Govern-
ments have undeniably acknowledged the
fact that there are many disabilities associ-
ated with living in the north of Australia.

In the Federal sphere the Common-
wealth Government provides certain zone
allowances to cover the disabilities of the
area. All Federal and State awards make
provision for a district allowance to com-
pensate people for the economic disabilities
which are occasioned as a result of living
in the north. Amongst other things, the
State Education Department has provided
allowances to people who do not have
facilities in the areas in which they live
to provide their children with a good
education such as that received by children
in the south of the State. The People con-
cerned have never considered these allow-
ances to be fair compensation for the dis-
advantages they have to put up with as
a result of the extremely high cost of
living.

As I said. in order to give their children
a good education and to maintain a reason-
able standard of living, many wives have
resorted to working and husbands have
taken on extra employment, with the
result that they are working for the tax
man. He is taking the lion's share of their
income. I do not know whether people in
the south appreciate the extent to which
those who live in the north are working
for the Government. Probably it is not

appreciated until one has to complete a
taxation return after living in the area.
and one finds the district allowance one is
paid to compensate for the local economic
disabilities is taxable. From the allowance
one claims for dependent school child-
ren, one must deduct any allowance
paid under Commonwealth secondary or
technical scholarships. Despite the fact
that many people might have skimped and
saved to send their children to a boarding
school in Perth-sometimes at a cost in
excess of $1,500 per head-they find they
are allowed to claim only $400 for each
child.

So I think members will appreciate that
the face value of those allowances is not
as significant as it may appear to be. It
is no wonder that people in the north are
upset about the fact that their children
are not entitled to the same benefits as
those applying to, say, an Aboriginal child
under the secondary education grants
scheme.

I am not criticising the scheme in any
way, but there is no doubt that the people
in the north are upset that they are not
entitled to the same benefits. This is some-
thing about which we spoke the other
evening. My view is that It is unrealistic
to apply the means test to the living-away-
from-home allowance when it affects the
people in the north of Australia, because
few people in that area would become
eligible to receive a figure which is sig-
nificantly in excess of the basic allowance
of $350. Payment in excess of the $350 is
dependent on the family's gross earnings
and the number of dependent children.

I would now like to quote the figures in
the means test and indicate the point at
which various sized families would become
eligible to receive the additional allowance.
and also the point at which their earnings
would disqualify them from receiving any
part of the entitlement.

With a family that has only one child
the allowance of $350 Is paid If the com-
bined family income does not exceed $4,200,
which is pathetically low by the standards
in the north. As the income increases, the
allowance diminishes to the extent that a
family earning $5,950 gross would not be
eligible for any allowance.

Working down the scale, for parents with
two children, we find that the base figure
for annual earnings is $4,650. This means
that no allowance would be paid to a fam-
ily earning $6,400 a year. For a family
that has three children the figures vary
between $5,100 and $6,850. and in the case
of a family of four children, if earnings are
in excess of $7,300, the parents are dis-
qualified from claiming any allowance.

Members should bear in mind that the
figures I am quoting are gross family In-
comes: that is. the incomes of husband
and wife combined. We can then ask our-
selves how many people would qualify for
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this allowance of $350. The answer is
simple, because very few, if any families,
would come within the income bracket
which would entitle them to the benefit.
I have obtained some information over the
past two or three days which indicates
that the average earnings of Public Works
Department employees in a typical north-
em town are as follows--

Labourer.. ..
Fourth Year Clerk
Engineer ..
Carpenter... ..
District Officer ..

per
annumn

.. ... 5 '720

... .. ,3760
8:450

.. 6,500
.11,050

In a completely different town I found
that a shire council truck driver earns
$6,500: a grader operator, $6,000: and a
power house engine driver, $6,500. Ord-
inarily, all these employees, including the
labourer, would be priced out of being
eligible for any additional benefits. Ad-
mittedly, these figures Include payment
of overtime, but if overtime was not
available to these workers the employers
would not be able to retain any staff.
The figures certainly do not include the
income earned by a working wile, and
among those people who are educating
their children, there are many working
wives.

As I stated previously, I would like to
know where all these low income earners
are. I know there must be some, but they
are certainly not included in the trades
or Professions. Even the wharfies In the
north can earn big money. It is important
to bear in mind that the people in the
north need high incomes in order to keep
pace with the high cost of living in the
area, but they are being penalised because
they are earning high incomes. There may
be people who will qualify for these bene-
fits and who earn less than $4,200, but I
do not believe there are many. I cannot
believe that there are many wharfies who
would be earning the wages that would
qualify them for the payment of the
allowance of which we are speaking.
In one town wharfies at the moment are
taking home wages of the order of $7,500
Per Year. I have been given this informa-
tion by a responsible person employed by
the Harbour and Light Department who
knows what he is talking about. In Derby
earnings would not be as high as this be-
cause ships are not calling at frequent
intervals.

It is important that we appreciate the
fact that we aire talking about people who
are fairly mature In age, and by the time
their children reach an age where It Is
necessary for them to be sent away to
school the breadwinner would, In most cir-
curnstances, have worked himself into a
secure and well paid position. I would also
Point out to members that we should not
be misguided Into thinking that families

are well off in the north because their in-
comes are relatively high; the cost of liv-
tig in the north is equally high, and it is
essential for them to earn comparatively
high incomes.

So even if the people In the north are
coming out a bit in front, surely this is
fair. I believe they are entitled to some
form of recompense in acknowledgment of
the disabilities they suffer and the sacri-
fices they make by living in the north.

The most important factor is that the
children must be given the opportunity to
become well equipped to face the future. I
would also point out that they are not
sent away to school as a result of any de-
sire on the part of their parents; they are
sent away through necessity which, in
many Instances. is a heartbreaking exper-
ience. Surely to goodness, in these circum-
stances, it is only fair that they be granted
reasonable financial relief.

The Commonwealth has failed to ack-
nowledge this necessity and, by applying
the means test throughout the State. the
Government will be effectively disadvan-
taging the people for whom the living-
away-from home allowance was originally
created. Our desire Is not to prejudice the
receipt of the allowance by other than
those people in the north. In fact, we
welcome the extension of the benefit as
this is in line with Liberal Party policy.

However, we contend that the means
test has discriminated unfairly against
people whose income is high through ne-
cessity, and accordingly there Is Justifi-
cation for a reinstatement of the State
living-away-from-home allowances to sup-
plement those received from the Common-
wealth.

I would now like to make one reference
to an article which appeared In the
News of the North supplement published in
The West Australian of Wednesday, the
28th February, 1973. It reads as follows-

Confusion over student grants.
A decision on whether to continue

State grants to educate isolated child-
ren will be deferred till confusion over
the terms of the new Commonwealth
allowances is settled.

The Minister of Education, Mr. T. D.
Evans, said last week that a situ-
ation could arise where the State was
subsidising the Commonwealth if it
maintained present grants.

He wants clarification of the means
test being imposed on part of the new
allowances.

Mr. Evans said that he wanted to
know if the State allowances would
reduce the $4,200 figure before the
means test was imposed.

f it did, every $5 of the State allow-
ance to people earning more than
$4.200 would mean a reduction of $1
in the Commonwealth grant.
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The $312 State allowance for child-
ren in fourth and fifth year. living
above the 26th Parallel, would then
subsidise by about $62 the Common-
wealth grant.

Mr. Evans said that a decision
would be made after clarifying the
position with the Commonwealth.

I suggest the position has been clarified,
and if the State Government continued the
payments there would be no question of
the State allowance being included in
the family income of prospective applic-
ants.

Mr. T. D, Evans: You had better ex-
amine that Proposition, because It is not
correct.

Mr. RIDGE: Let rme develop my argu-
ment. I would like to refer to the gross
income as defined in the application form
for additional boarding allowance in 1973.
In it the following appears-

My Gross Income for the financial
year from 1 July 1971 to 30 June 1972
was made up as follows:

(i) Gross salary of wages as an
employee of...

diI) Gross income from invest-
ments (including bank in-
terest)...

(iii) Gross income, from prop-
erty...

(lv) Gross income from a business

(v) Other Income, including in-
come from sources outside
Australia...

I suggest that this allowance could only
be Included in the item "Other income".
No-one can convince me that an allowance
should be included under that item: in
fact It makes no reference to allowances.
In an effort to confirm whether or not
my conclusion was correct I telephoned the
Director-General of Education In Queens-
land (Mr. Guymer). and he advised me
that the Queensland State Government
will continue to pay the State allowance
at the 1972 rate of entitlement. He also
said that to his knowledge the payment
would in no way subsidise the Common-
wealth allowance. This contradicts the
argument put forward by the Minister in
the newspaper.

The Queensland Government will con-
tinue to pay the State allowance. As a
point of interest it wili cost $661,000 a
year.

Mr. T. D. Evans: What was Queens-
land paying previously?

Mr. RIDGE: It will qontinue paying the
allowance at the rate applicable in 2972.
The 1972 rate was as follows--

S
Primary children .... 10
Secondary children up to third

year 200
Fourth and fifth year students 250

fU Western Australia were to reintroduce
its allowance, I contend it would cost
less than half the Queensland figure. The
Director-General of Education In Queens-
land said that In Queensland, as in West-
ern Australia, there was considerable con-
fusion over this matter when the Com-
monwealth's intention was first made
known. In fact, it was announced in
Queensland that the State Government's
payments would be discontinued. How-
ever,' he said there was such an outcry
over the decision that Cabinet agreed to
reinstate the allowance.

I was told by another person from
Queensland that the Labor Party members
there were extremely vocal In supporting
the claim for the continuation of the
allowance. I hope the same situation will
prevail in this House, because the isolated
people of Western Australia desperately
need financial help. I believe this Is a
matter which should be considered on
other than a party bashs.

Debate adjourned, on motion by Mr.
T. D. Evans (Minister for Education).

House adjourned at 10.34 p.
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The DEPUTY PRESIDENT (The Hon.
N. E. Baxter) took the Chair at 2.30 p.m.,
and read prayers.

QUESTION WITHOUT NOTICE
AUCTIONEERS ACT

Consolidation with Sales by Auction Act
The Hon. 1. 0. MEDCALF, to the
Leader of the House:
(1) In view of the reference in the

Governor's Speech to the Govern-
ment's intention to amend the
Auctioneers Act, has the Govern-
ment, in the interests of simpli-
fying the law for the public and
those engaged In auction sales,
given consideration to consolidat-
Ing the Auctioneers Act and the
Sales by Auction Act?

(2) if the answer to Question (1) Is in
the affirmnative, may such legisla-
tion be anticipated In the current
sitting?

(3) if the answer Is In the negative,
will the Government initiate an
inquiry Into the desirability of
such a consolidation?

The Hon. J. DOLAN replied:
(1) No.
(2) Answered by (1).


